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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Good afternoon.

          3  This is the hearing of the Fire and Criminal Justice

          4  Services Committee. I am Larry Warden, Chair of the

          5  Committee.

          6                 Today the Committee will hold a

          7  hearing on three introductions, Intro. 853, Intro.

          8  640 and Intro. 641. The Speaker and I introduced

          9  Intro. No. 853, in conjunction with the Mayor. It is

         10  entitled the Victims of Violent Crime Protection

         11  Act. The purpose of Intro. 853 is to make it easier

         12  for victims of violent crime to obtain justice in

         13  civil court. This legislation allows violent crime

         14  victims to sue the person who injured them for not

         15  only compensatory and punitive damages but for

         16  attorneys' fees and injunctive relief.

         17                 853 will surely make it easier for

         18  lower-income crime victims to obtain justice in the

         19  civil area.

         20                 Intro. 853 expands upon Intro. 752-A

         21  signed into law by the Mayor in December 2000, which

         22  created a private cause of action to victims of

         23  gender-motivated violence against their abusers.

         24                 Intro. 640 and 641 amend the City's

         25  Administrative Code in relation to collective
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          2  bargaining involving the City's uniformed forces.

          3                 Intro. 640 would include as employees

          4  of the uniformed fire service persons employed by

          5  the Fire Department of New York as Fire Alarm

          6  Dispatchers and supervisors of fire alarm

          7  dispatchers for purposes of collective bargaining

          8  only.

          9                 Intro. No. 641 would include as

         10  members of the Uniformed Fire Service persons

         11  employed by the Fire Department as EMTs, paramedics

         12  and supervisors of EMTs and paramedics for purposes

         13  of collective bargaining only.

         14                 Today I am joined by Victor Robles,

         15  the Minority Whip from Brooklyn -- the Majority

         16  Whip, I am sorry. Madeline Provenzano, from the

         17  Bronx, and we will be joined by others as they

         18  arrive.

         19                 My counsel, Louis Vetrone, is on my

         20  right, and my Chief Aid, Elizabeth Martinez, is on

         21  my left.

         22                 I would like the first individual to

         23  come to the podium, that is Steven Fishner, the

         24  Criminal Justice Coordinator, for the Mayor.

         25                 Please identify yourself for the
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          2  record and then proceed.

          3                 MR. FISHNER: I am Steven Fishner. I

          4  am the Mayor's Criminal Justice Coordinator, and

          5  with me this afternoon is David Jaffe, who is my

          6  general counsel.

          7                 Good morning, Chairman Warden, and

          8  members of the Fire and Criminal Justice Committee.

          9  Thank you for the opportunity to testify before you

         10  today concerning the Victims of Violent Crime

         11  Protection Act, which is Introduction No. 853. It

         12  gives all victims of violent crime a civil cause of

         13  action against their attackers.

         14                 Mayor Giuliani strongly supports the

         15  Victims of Violent Crime Protection Act, which

         16  provides enhanced legal remedies to violent crime

         17  victims, by giving an individual who suffered an

         18  injury as a result of a violent attack the ability

         19  to sue for compensatory and punitive damages,

         20  injunctive and declaratory relief, attorneys fees

         21  and other costs.

         22                 The bill would create a civil cause

         23  of action that would give victims additional

         24  remedies as they seek to rebuild their lives

         25  following a violent attack.
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          2                 The Mayor's strong commitment to

          3  reducing all crime, including violent crime, has

          4  made New York City the safest large City in America.

          5                 Since the Mayor took office, New York

          6  City has enjoyed the lowest levels of crime in a

          7  generation, and overall crime has been reduced by 57

          8  percent.

          9                 The Federal Bureau of Investigations

         10  Uniformed Crime Report shows a 49 percent drop in

         11  violent crime, with a 66 percent drop in murder and

         12  non-negligent manslaughter and a 58 percent decline

         13  in robbery between 1993 and 1999, the last full year

         14  for which FBI statistics are available.

         15                 Moreover, New York City Police

         16  Department figures reflect continued reduction of

         17  violent crime throughout 2000, including an

         18  additional 10 percent decrease in robbery compared

         19  to 1999, and I am very pleased to report that year

         20  to date, in 2001, murder has declined another 25

         21  percent, that is year to date this year compared to

         22  last year, and robbery has declined 17 percent.

         23                 Overall, crime, major crime in New

         24  York City year to date during the beginning of this

         25  year has been reduced seven percent, compared to the
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          2  same period last year.

          3                 What these dramatic crime reductions

          4  mean is thousands of lives saved and tens of

          5  thousands of New Yorkers spared the physical pain,

          6  emotional trauma and financial burden associated

          7  with violent crime. Despite all we have

          8  accomplished, we must do more to reduce crime and to

          9  provide the City's violent crime victims with the

         10  tools needed to fight crime and rebuild lives.

         11                 Violent crimes are the most insidious

         12  of all crimes, taking a tremendous financial and

         13  psychological toll on victims, their loved ones and

         14  our community.

         15                 Studies of the economic cost

         16  associated with the violent crime demonstrate that

         17  the costs are many and varied. They include short

         18  and long-term medical expenses, increased employee

         19  absenteeism, lost wages, higher insurance rates and

         20  damaged property. The U.S. Department of Justice

         21  National Crime Victimization Survey from 1999, the

         22  last year for which the survey was completed

         23  estimates crimes against people, including robbery,

         24  assault, rape and sexual assault caused $1.4 billion

         25  in economic loss to victims alone. These costs
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          2  increase exponentially once the effect in insurers

          3  and employers, governments and health care providers

          4  are calculated.

          5                 A recent NIJ survey estimates that

          6  violent crime, including drunk driving and arson,

          7  cost the nation as much as $426 billion annually.

          8  However, no study can fully quantify the devastating

          9  impact of violent crime on individuals. Physical

         10  pain, emotional trauma, fear of revictimization and

         11  even of death play a large role in victims recovery.

         12                 A Department of Justice Office for

         13  Victims of Crime Study indicates that violent crime

         14  victims suffer post traumatic stress disorder,

         15  experience higher rates of depression, have a

         16  greater tendency to experience anxiety disorders and

         17  are more likely to abuse drugs and alcohol compared

         18  to non-crime victims.

         19                 The impact of violent crime on

         20  children has even greater ramifications.

         21                 Juvenile victims of violent crime

         22  suffer long-term emotional trauma that could result

         23  in learning difficulties, lower grades and lost

         24  earning potential as adults.

         25                 As a result of five years of hearings
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          2  on domestic violence and gender-motivated crime, the

          3  United States Congress found that domestic violence

          4  victims were especially vulnerable to the

          5  deleterious effects of violence. Accordingly,

          6  Congress passed a Gender Motivated Violence

          7  Protection Act.  The bill, as you all well know,

          8  signed by President Clinton in 1994, gave victims of

          9  gender-motivated violence a civil action allowing

         10  for compensatory damages. But this powerful new

         11  remedy was lost in May 2000 when the U.S. Supreme

         12  Court held that only state and local governments had

         13  the power to create this type of civil cause of

         14  action.

         15                 In response, commendably, the New

         16  York City Council late last year passed a local

         17  Gender-motivated Violence Protection Act, sponsored

         18  by, among others, Speaker Vallone.

         19                 In December 2000, Mayor Giuliani

         20  signed the bill after it passed the City Council

         21  unanimously.

         22                 Like its federal predecessor, the

         23  Gender Motivated Violence Protection Act provided an

         24  enhanced cause of action for victims of

         25  gender-motivated violence, and permitted victims of
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          2  gender-motivated violence to recover compensatory

          3  damages, punitive damages, declaratory relief and

          4  injunctive relief, such as restraining orders, as

          5  state law already allows, and added the ability to

          6  collect attorneys' fees. Enactment of the Gender

          7  Motivated Violence Protection Act allowed victims of

          8  gender-motivated violence to receive several types

          9  of relief in one court, instead of having

         10  simultaneous civil actions in different courts.

         11                 By including attorneys' fees, the new

         12  law shifted the financial burdens associated with

         13  litigation from the victim to the perpetrator,

         14  making it easier and less costly for victims,

         15  especially low-income victims, to seek justice in

         16  the City's civil courts.

         17                 By creating this cause of action, the

         18  Council took an important first step providing

         19  enhanced civil protections for all violent crime

         20  victims. But every New Yorker should have the right

         21  to be free from violent crime and its devastating

         22  impact, not just victims of gender-motivated

         23  violence.

         24                 That is why individuals in government

         25  must work together to address the needs of all
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          2  violent crime victims, regardless of their

          3  attacker's motivation. The Mayor has shown time and

          4  time again that he is committed to deterring crime,

          5  adequately punishing offenders and providing

          6  additional tools to address the needs of violent

          7  crime victims.

          8                 Since taking office, the Mayor

          9  supported numerous laws and instituted countless

         10  violent crime reduction initiatives with many

         11  different agencies and advocacy groups. Here are

         12  just a few recent examples:

         13                 To protect victims of hate crimes,

         14  resources have been provided to support expansion of

         15  the Police Department Hate Crimes Unit, as well as

         16  units in the City's District Attorneys' Offices.

         17                 To protect victims of drunk drivers.

         18  NYPD now seizes the vehicles of all DWI drivers,

         19  including first offenders.

         20                 To protect for-hire vehicle drivers.

         21  The Police Department has increased patrol efforts.

         22  The Taxi and Limousine Commission has mandated

         23  partitions or cameras in all for-hire vehicles, and

         24  the Economic Development Corporation has provided

         25  funds to purchase the required equipment, resulting
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          2  in a drastic reduction of violence against livery

          3  cab drivers.

          4                 And I am also, while knocking on

          5  wood, glad to say that since the terrible state of

          6  homicides of livery car drivers, there has not been

          7  a single homicide, and that is due to these efforts.

          8                 To further avoid violence against

          9  victims of domestic violence, the Mayor's Commission

         10  to combat family violence has created or expanded

         11  various domestic violence programs. Just one such

         12  example is the PHONES program, and that is People

         13  Helping Others in Need of Emergency Services. That

         14  program, where New Yorkers donate cellular

         15  telephones and City agencies then distribute to

         16  domestic violence victims, is done so that domestic

         17  violence victims will be able to immediately call

         18  and access emergency services when needed.

         19                 Another example created in

         20  conjunction with the New York City Police Department

         21  is the Model Domestic Violence Program, which

         22  includes local police units at each precinct

         23  dedicated to domestic violence cases.

         24                 The Model Domestic Violence Program

         25  has dramatically increased the number of home visits
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          2  to victims and offenders, provided support and

          3  follow-up to victims and deterred offenders by

          4  demonstrating that their local precinct is closely

          5  monitoring each case.

          6                 The Mayor has also been an outspoken

          7  advocate for the creation of new laws to reduce

          8  crime, to punish offenders and to protect victims.

          9  He supported New York State's first Hate Crimes Law,

         10  and he has also supported Jenna's Law which ended

         11  parole for all violent felony offenders, and he

         12  remains a firm advocate to establish determinant

         13  sentencing which would eliminate parole for all

         14  felony offenses.

         15                 He also continues to be a leader in

         16  the debate for tougher penalties for crimes

         17  involving firearms, and for stricter gun control

         18  laws.

         19                 The Mayor has often emphasized the

         20  City must employ both civil and criminal remedies to

         21  reduce violent crimes to address the needs of

         22  individual victims in society as a whole.

         23                 To that end, criminal and civil laws

         24  have different goals and provide victims different

         25  remedies.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2                 Criminal law is an effective tool for

          3  moving dangerous violent offenders from City

          4  streets. The Government, though, through the Police

          5  Department, District Attorneys and the courts, is

          6  empowered to utilize the criminal law to identify

          7  perpetrators, determine their guilt or innocence,

          8  and to ensure that they receive appropriate

          9  sentences.

         10                 The remedies available under the

         11  criminal law are limited to constraints on the

         12  offender's liberties, such as imposition of a fine,

         13  probation, monitor treatment or counseling and

         14  incarceration.

         15                 In a few cases, courts may impose

         16  some limited form of restitution for a type of

         17  protective order. Overall, however, the benefits

         18  available to the victim of a violent crime under the

         19  criminal law, although emotionally significant, are

         20  limited in only the best cases, to piece of mind and

         21  sense of justice.

         22                 The criminal law cannot fully

         23  compensate a victim's physical, emotional and

         24  financial losses. Civil law by contrast, resolves

         25  disputes between individuals. It focuses on the need

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  of the injured party. Civil law provides a wide

          3  range of benefits for victims, and relief in the

          4  form of injunctions and monetary damages.

          5                 Injured parties may recover

          6  identifiable past and future expenses, monetary

          7  damages for intangible injuries, like physical pain

          8  and emotional suffering, and additional remedies

          9  like protective orders and legally binding judicial

         10  declarations.

         11                 Finally, the injured party need only

         12  prove the case by a lower preponderance of the

         13  evidence standard. Enhancing the civil cause of

         14  action for all violent crime victims provides

         15  victims with new and more effective tools to make

         16  their lives whole. The victims of Violent Crime

         17  Protection Act amends the public safety section of

         18  the Administrative Code to provide a local civil

         19  cause of action for victims of violent crime.

         20                 Like the recently enacted victims of

         21  Gender-motivated Protection Crime Act, the law

         22  defines crimes of violence as felonies and

         23  misdemeanors against a person or against property,

         24  and I now quote from the bill, "when the conduct

         25  presents a serious risk of physical injury to
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          2  another."

          3                 As with its predecessors, one can

          4  bring an action under this bill regardless of the

          5  existence of a criminal case, and it allows victims

          6  to recover attorneys' fees in addition to state

          7  allowed damages and other relief.

          8                 The City must do more to reduce

          9  violent crime and to address the needs of our city's

         10  violent crime victims.

         11                 Like the victims of gender-motivated

         12  crime protection act, this bill will assist victims

         13  by providing appropriate remedies, making it easier

         14  for victims of child abuse, same sex domestic abuse,

         15  and all hate-motivated crimes, to seek justice in

         16  the City's civil courts.

         17                 That concludes my testimony. I thank

         18  you for the opportunity to appear before you, and I

         19  now welcome any questions you may have for me.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         21  much, Mr. Fishner.

         22                 Before we proceed to questions, we

         23  have been joined by Council Member Eldridge from

         24  Manhattan.

         25                 One of the things you spoke about is
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          2  that it would make it easier for low-income crime

          3  victims to bring civil actions against a person that

          4  injured them.

          5                 Can you give us a more detailed

          6  explanation of how you see this?

          7                 MR. FISHNER: Yes. Your bill has built

          8  in a mechanism, an important mechanism, which is the

          9  provision of the award of attorneys' fees, and that

         10  means that there will be a financial incentive for

         11  attorneys to take these cases on for those clients

         12  who are unable to pay a retainer at the commencement

         13  of the case or pay ongoing bills on an hourly basis.

         14  And it will make it possible for more aggrieved

         15  parties to go forward based on the merits of the

         16  case instead of a consideration of how much money

         17  they may have at their disposal.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 I neglected to introduce my colleague

         21  on the right, literally, the ranking republican on

         22  this Committee, James Oddo.

         23                 I want to acknowledge that we

         24  received written testimony from Mothers Against

         25  Drunk Driving, that's MADD agency, and Gordon J.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  Campbell, Chief Executive Officer of Safe Horizon,

          3  their testimony, their written testimony, will be

          4  entered in the public record.

          5                 Council Member Eldridge.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr. Chair,

          7  are there other people who are going to testify on

          8  this bill today?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And I

         11  understand we are going to vote on it today?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: If there is no

         13  changes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: If there is

         15  what?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: No changes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But this is

         18  the only hearing we have had on this bill?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: This is an

         20  extension of the Gender Motivated bill that was --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr. Chair,

         22  the other bill was heard by the General Welfare

         23  Committee, I think we had several hearings. It was

         24  passed out of the General Welfare Committee. This is

         25  the first hearing, and I think that this bill has

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  much further ramifications and lack of specifics,

          3  and we certainly should be studying this. I think

          4  this bill opens the door to many, many abuses and to

          5  an endless cycle of never doing this. I know that we

          6  don't like crime, and I know what it is like to be a

          7  victim of crime, not a violent crime, but a victim

          8  of crime, but to have someone who commits a felony

          9  be sentenced, serve a term in prison, which my

         10  understanding was a term in prison was the

         11  punishment for committing a felony, and then to have

         12  an open-ended law like this that then allows that

         13  person to have to face all kinds of problems, in

         14  addition to the problems they face when they get out

         15  of prison, seems to me to be something that we

         16  really need to consider more fully, and I would

         17  request that we -- I am very sorry that we are

         18  voting on this today.

         19                 I don't understand, the

         20  Administrative Code of the City of New York is one

         21  thing, the Criminal Code of the State, they are two

         22  different things, and it is my understanding that

         23  with this bill we are really adding to the criminal

         24  code; is that not a good interpretation?

         25                 MR. FISHNER: With all due respect,
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          2  without our existing law, current law, without this

          3  bill, there are major distinctions between the

          4  criminal law, which is in the penal law in New York

          5  State, and the civil law, which is sometimes by

          6  statute and often by common law, but they come

          7  together in many, many different contexts.

          8                 For instance, if someone were to

          9  victimize me in a business transaction, and take my

         10  money by fraud, I would go to the police or go to a

         11  District Attorney, I would want that person

         12  investigated and prosecuted, and potentially they

         13  would be at the end of that process, be convicted of

         14  a crime, and sentenced to jail.

         15                 Nevertheless, I have financial loss,

         16  and I can bring a lawsuit, there are in other

         17  context --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: For the

         19  recovery of the property?

         20                 MR. FISHNER: That's right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But this is

         22  different, because it isn't for the recovery of the

         23  property, it is a further punishment for the trauma,

         24  or whatever, we are adding a monetary value to the

         25  trauma, which has to then be decided in a court,
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          2  which I think is a very important issue and deserves

          3  to be heard more fully than we are hearing here

          4  today.

          5                 MR. FISHNER: We are adding that, but

          6  I think in doing so we are taking a great step

          7  forward. Because to give you a few hypotheticals, if

          8  someone were to physically victimize, a victim of

          9  crime, and cause them to have medical bills,

         10  doctors' bills, lost earnings, I think all of us

         11  should agree that not only should the person who

         12  perpetrates that injury perhaps serve a jail

         13  sentence for the acts, but that there is a financial

         14  loss, and that the victim should have an opportunity

         15  to recover, and that is what this law does.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well,

         17  explain to me the difference between this, and, for

         18  instance, the -- I was in a severe automobile

         19  accident earlier this year, and I was hospitalized

         20  for two weeks. The car was demolished because it was

         21  hit by a young woman who was 16 years old, driving

         22  without a license, and who had no insurance. So, she

         23  was unable to pick up any of the expenses or the

         24  cost of the car because the car was demolished.

         25                 The State has in place a program that
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          2  has a cap on it, it is my understanding, of $20,000

          3  or something, for non-insured. You know this more

          4  than I because I am not an attorney but just

          5  following through, it seems to me there is a

          6  parallel. This bill has no limits on it and it has

          7  no stated parameters with which to operate and it --

          8                 MR. FISHNER: The parameters --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, could

         10  you describe the difference between the motor

         11  vehicle --

         12                 MR. FISHNER: I will.

         13                 The motor vehicle insurance context

         14  is a heavily regulated exception to the general

         15  rule. There is no fault insurance, there are various

         16  other things. Let me change that hypothetical. Let's

         17  say that woman ran up to you on the street and

         18  assaulted you with a weapon and caused you physical

         19  injury to your body and you had to go to the doctor

         20  and you had to go to the hospital and you had to be

         21  compensated for a number of different expenses. None

         22  of the things you just discussed apply.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Could you

         24  just --

         25                 MR. FISHNER: If I could just finish.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          3                 MR. FISHNER: I will be very brief.

          4                 All of these questions that you have

          5  about whether it is warranted or not, whether these

          6  expenses are reasonable or even real are adjudicated

          7  within the civil justice context. There is a

          8  lawsuit, and those issues which are never, never

          9  raised in a criminal case are adjudicated in a civil

         10  context.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Let's look

         12  to some of the possible results of this kind of bill

         13  becoming -- let's look at the jails and prisons. I

         14  think there is nobody who questions the population

         15  in those jails and prisons, it is almost, what, 90

         16  some odd percent of people of color, poor people in

         17  the State prison system, poor people. Certainly if

         18  we were to do the average incomes it wouldn't be

         19  above $20,000, it doesn't seem to me, a year. These

         20  are the people that you are now opening the door for

         21  in what could be a life term sentence of paying off

         22  civil fines and penalties, because we are allowing

         23  indiscriminate appeals. Somebody comes out of

         24  prison, they have enough problems getting jobs and

         25  trying to get back into society. We are now saying
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          2  that in addition to that, there is the probability

          3  that you will have to pick up the expenses and the

          4  costs and everything else of what the trauma was for

          5  which you have already served a sentence, you are

          6  going to have to pick up that and you are going to

          7  have to pay that off for the rest of your life, and

          8  that seems to me to be a very important concept that

          9  should be studied thoroughly and something that I

         10  think is a very dangerous precedent.

         11                 MR. FISHNER: The choice is clear -

         12  someone pays. Shall it be the innocent victim of the

         13  crime, or shall it be the perpetrator?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The purpose

         15  that we have over 40,000 police officers, and the

         16  thing that everybody is so proud about, is that we

         17  have reduced crime. We have a Crime Victim Board

         18  that does pay certain expenses, and I had forgotten

         19  about that. Could you explain what they do in the

         20  state?

         21                 MR. FISHNER: The Crime Victims Board

         22  is a state agency in which victims of crime can make

         23  application to get a portion of their expenses

         24  recompensed.

         25                 It does not compensate people for all
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          2  of their actual expenses.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Let me say this,

          4  Councilwoman.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I believe

          6  that this bill, I am sorry, is unfair, unjust, will

          7  have an undue and excessive impact on poor people

          8  who can't afford it anyway and for people that we

          9  are looking to find a way and an opportunity for

         10  them to live a better live from when they get out of

         11  having served their sentence, and it is very

         12  dismaying to me.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Isn't it true

         15  that a victim always has the option to sue in a

         16  Civil Court for damages to person or property?

         17                 MR. FISHNER: A victim does, but there

         18  are a few differences in this bill, in Intro. 853,

         19  that don't exist under current state law.

         20                 First of all, Intro. 853 provides for

         21  attorneys' fees, which addresses the needs of

         22  low-income victims, as we have already discussed.

         23                 The second thing is that there are

         24  different statutes of limitations. The statute of

         25  limitation on Intro. 853 is a six-year statute of
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          2  limitations. It varies, depending on the kind of

          3  claim under state law, but in state law, in some

          4  cases the statute of limitations can be as short as

          5  one year, and Intro. 853, in addition to having a

          6  six-year statute of limitations has a totalling

          7  provision, which says that if someone, for instance,

          8  is unable to bring a lawsuit because of the injuries

          9  that were inflicted in the commission of the crime,

         10  that the statute of limitations tolled during the

         11  period they can't bring the lawsuit. It also tolls

         12  the statute of limitations for people who have not

         13  yet reached the age of majority.

         14                 The third thing is that conviction of

         15  a crime is not required under provision, under

         16  Introduction 853. There is, the standard is

         17  preponderance of the evidence and whether there is

         18  reason to believe that a violent crime had been

         19  committed, which is a reasonable standard and is on

         20  a par and consistent with the civil standard that is

         21  applied in other civil matters.

         22                 So, there are a number of

         23  enhancements that quite reasonably simplify this

         24  process for crime victims.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes, we saw that
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          2  in California with the O.J. case with the acquittal

          3  and then the subsequent responsibility finding in

          4  the Civil Court.

          5                 MR. FISHNER: I didn't want to be the

          6  person to raise that case as an example of anything

          7  we should look to, but it actually is probably the

          8  best known situation where two different results

          9  occurred, where there were two different legal

         10  standards.

         11                 There is no higher legal burden under

         12  our law than proof beyond a reasonable doubt. That

         13  is the standard that is applied in a criminal case,

         14  quite rightly. It is a constitutional standard. It

         15  is a cornerstone of our government.

         16                 However, the preponderance of

         17  evidence standard is essentially for all other civil

         18  disputes, and always has been throughout our

         19  nation's history, and that is a lower standard that

         20  is an easier burden to meet, and it is not any

         21  different, we are not changing that legal standard

         22  in this intro at all. We are going with traditional

         23  long-standing tradition of jurisprudence.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman,

         25  you stole my thunder because I think that is the
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          2  perfect case to use as an example, the fact that

          3  today, albeit the different jurisdiction, we are not

          4  creating any new causes of action with this bill. We

          5  are not saying that previously a victim of a murder

          6  could not bring a civil case and now they can. We

          7  are not saying that a person who was robbed prior

          8  could not bring and now they can. They have that

          9  ability today; is that correct?

         10                 MR. FISHNER: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: What we are

         12  doing is saying that, that victim, and I understand

         13  and I appreciate Ronnie's concern about the

         14  economics of the criminal, by concern is more the

         15  economics of the victim. Now the victim who may be

         16  low income and doesn't have the right or the ability

         17  to hire the dream team, that victim now, because he

         18  or she doesn't fear the cost of attorneys' fees, can

         19  now maybe bring a case that prior he or she couldn't

         20  because of economic factors.

         21                 MR. FISHNER: That's exactly right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, it is not

         23  that there is a universe of crimes that previously

         24  an individual, a victim, couldn't bring a civil

         25  action for it, we are not affecting that. What we
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          2  are affecting perhaps is the individual who doesn't

          3  have the economic means, maybe now they will have

          4  that ability to bring a case.

          5                 MR. FISHNER: There is an expression

          6  that is used in law schools in many other contexts,

          7  which is, one has no right without a remedy. And

          8  what this intro does is provides better access to

          9  the remedy which allows people to have their rights.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         11                 So, again, the attorney fees is in

         12  play, the statute of limitations, which are

         13  lengthened to an extent?

         14                 MR. FISHNER: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: To allow a

         16  longer period of time.

         17                 MR. FISHNER: Six years.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: To bring an

         19  action. I think that is the most critical point

         20  here. An individual of today, a victim of a criminal

         21  act, can institute a civil action today, prior to

         22  this legislation.

         23                 MR. FISHNER: The right exists, the

         24  process would be simplified. Arbitrary hurdles would

         25  be removed to have access to the same civil rights
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          2  that the crime victims have now. And that is an

          3  important thing.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

          7  Chairman, may I just ask something?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

          9  Eldridge.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: So, are we

         11  justifying or explaining this bill as extending the

         12  opportunity of civil cases to poor people; is that

         13  why we have this bill?

         14                 MR. FISHNER: It would make a

         15  substantive change in the process. And there are

         16  procedural changes that could be made, there are

         17  substantive changes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: What are the

         19  substantive changes?

         20                 MR. FISHNER: Essentially, as Council

         21  Member Oddo has said, overall the substantive change

         22  is not a great one. The procedural change, though,

         23  is substantial because it will make it possible for

         24  people who are victimized and have financial loss in

         25  many cases to assert their right to go to civil
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          2  court more easily, and that would be a vast

          3  improvement on behalf of many crime victims in New

          4  York City.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And who pays

          6  the attorney fees?

          7                 MR. FISHNER: The defendant.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The

          9  perpetrator of the crime?

         10                 MR. FISHNER: The defendant. The

         11  defendant in the civil suit.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I mean, if

         13  they are also poor, how do they do that?

         14                 MR. FISHNER: That is for the court to

         15  decide. That will be done on a case-by-case basis.

         16  There is an expression of some people being judgment

         17  proof. There is a body of law that says when people

         18  have to pay a judgment or don't, when they can pay a

         19  judgment and when they can't, and that is for --

         20  this is not being done arbitrarily, this is not

         21  being done by some government agency. In a court of

         22  law, using our existing laws and our existing

         23  remedies, there will be a case and a trial, if

         24  necessary, and that will be decided by the court.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And the
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          2  attorney that will take these cases, can they also

          3  be Legal Aid attorneys in the Civil Division?

          4                 MR. FISHNER: The law doesn't speak to

          5  that. It is not customarily the mission of The Legal

          6  Aid Society to take cases on a fee basis.

          7                 I think what this will do is it will

          8  encourage attorneys in the private sector, not The

          9  Legal Aid Society, to take these cases on. The Legal

         10  Aid Society has, already has plenty of cases of

         11  their own.

         12                 But it wasn't written with The Legal

         13  Aid Society in mind one way or another.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: What is the

         15  classification, not with this suit, but with the

         16  tort cases, what do you call that when you are

         17  trying to limit it or something? Not being an

         18  attorney I am at a great disadvantage, but I think

         19  even the Mayor has supported at different times the

         20  change --

         21                 MR. FISHNER: Are you talking about

         22  tort reform?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Is that what

         24  it is? I don't know. What would tort reform do?

         25                 MR. FISHNER: Well, tort reform can
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          2  talk about a thousand things.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: What is it

          4  that the trial lawyers support and other people

          5  don't?

          6                 MR. FISHNER: Well, I can tell you

          7  what this is, I really am not sure what you are

          8  going at.

          9                 I think the Mayor's point of view on

         10  this is that there does need to be in some other

         11  areas tort reform, however, in this area, this is a

         12  group of people, victims of violent crime, who

         13  actually have had obstacles placed in their way in

         14  gaining access to the legal system. They need

         15  assistance to get into the legal system, that bill

         16  does it.

         17                 There are in other contexts, other

         18  issues, some people who have too much access and

         19  they should be reasonably limited.

         20                 I think issue by issue you have to

         21  take a look at these and come to a conclusion as to

         22  what is reasonable, and I believe this is

         23  reasonable.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: My final

         25  question is, do you have an estimate of how many
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          2  more cases you would have as a result of this

          3  legislation?

          4                 MR. FISHNER: I don't.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Any other

          6  questions?

          7                 Council Member Oddo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One other thing.

          9  I mentioned the dream team in my earlier statement,

         10  and we actually had a member of the dream team sit

         11  at this very table a few weeks ago, in the context

         12  of I think Bill Perkins, Council Member Perkins'

         13  resolution on the death penalty. And I asked him a

         14  question sort of along the lines of, it's my belief,

         15  and many will disagree with me, I assume, that the

         16  great divide in America, in terms of accessing and

         17  getting justice doesn't fall on racial lines or on

         18  gender lines, but it falls between the rich and the

         19  poor, and I don't want to characterize Mr. Dream

         20  Team's response, but he essentially agreed with

         21  that. And the point that he made is that the great

         22  problem we have in this country in terms of

         23  achieving justice is for those folks who don't have

         24  the ability to hire a dream team, I mean he had

         25  recognized that. And I think this bill goes
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          2  hand-in-hand with that, that you are now attempting

          3  to offer folks that don't have the economic

          4  resources to get an opportunity for justice, to in

          5  fact get that opportunity. And I think it is

          6  consistent with some of the efforts this Council has

          7  undertaken in the past.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Council

          9  Member, I love you, but you are -- I mean, to

         10  characterize this bill as assisting poor people

         11  seems to me to be very generous and optimistic.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, Council

         13  Member, with all due respect, my concern is in fact

         14  for all victims of crime, particularly those victims

         15  of crime that don't have the resources. I will allow

         16  and leave for you and other Council Members and

         17  other people out there to worry about the criminal,

         18  my concern is the victim, whether he or she be rich

         19  or poor.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But I don't

         21  understand -- I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 What is the difference between this

         23  and any kind of suit where an attorney takes the

         24  case and says my fee would be a percentage of what I

         25  get in response to it?
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          2                 I mean, there is that case. So, if

          3  you have a good case and you really pursue that

          4  avenue, it seems to me you can find the attorney who

          5  will take that suit.

          6                 Part of the thing is that he has to

          7  be sure that he can get the money. I mean, I think

          8  this is going to take up more court time, in crowded

          9  courts, and you are going to have defendants who

         10  can't pay, and so we are just going to further

         11  exacerbate the situation we have now when you can't

         12  get something on the calendar and you are concerned

         13  about attorneys who are -- it has great

         14  ramifications, and all I am saying is that we are

         15  investigating this bill and studying it in too short

         16  a time. There are lots of things that you have to

         17  consider when you pass a bill like this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Can we let the

         19  witness respond if he cares to for that point? What

         20  is the difference between this type of case and a

         21  case that is taken on contingency?

         22                 MR. FISHNER: The grant of legal fees

         23  in the bill itself is just more of an assurance to

         24  an attorney that a meritorious case will result in

         25  compensation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You have to

          3  be able to pay the compensation.

          4                 MR. FISHNER: I don't have anything to

          5  add to what I said before.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I want to thank

          7  you, if there are no more questions. We do have our

          8  next witness who is a crime victims attorney and

          9  perhaps we could explore your issues a little more

         10  thoroughly.

         11                 Mr. Fishner, I want to thank you for

         12  testifying, and good seeing you.

         13                 MR. FISHNER: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: The next witness

         15  will be Jeffrey Dion, National Center for Victims of

         16  Crime.

         17                 Please state your name, your

         18  affiliation, and then you may proceed.

         19                 MR. DION: Mr. Chairman, members of

         20  the Committee, my name is Jeff Dion, and I serve as

         21  the Chief Counsel for Public Affairs for the

         22  National Crime Victim Bar Association, an

         23  organization of attorneys and allied professionals

         24  dedicated to assisting victims of crime in their

         25  pursuit of civil justice.
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          2                 The National Crime Victim Bar

          3  Association is an affiliate of the National Center

          4  for Victims of Crime, the Nation's most

          5  comprehensive organization committed to helping

          6  crime victims rebuild their lives.

          7                 I appreciate the opportunity to come

          8  and speak before you today, and I think that the

          9  members of the Council are asking all the right

         10  questions, and I hope that I might be able to shed

         11  some more light on how these types of suits work in

         12  the real world.

         13                 And I am here today to voice our

         14  support for this initiative. I am not before you as

         15  an expert on New York law and not to address the

         16  technical implications of this legislation, but

         17  rather I am here as an advocate for the rights of

         18  crime victims to pursue civil remedies against their

         19  perpetrator.

         20                 I will explain why victims file civil

         21  actions, the importance of the intent of this bill,

         22  as it has been represented to me, and similar

         23  policies that have been pursued in other

         24  jurisdictions.

         25                 First, why do victims sue? There are
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          2  numerous reasons why victims of crime pursue civil

          3  actions. Some of the benefits they may be trying to

          4  secure include, first, indemnification. Crime costs

          5  victims more than $345 billion a year in economic

          6  damages, and they deserve to be compensated for

          7  their loss and given the resources they need to help

          8  build their lives.

          9                 Victims of, survivors of homicide

         10  victims find themselves trying to figure out how to

         11  put food on the table, to pay the mortgage and to

         12  put the kids through the college once the

         13  bread-winner of the family has been lost to violent

         14  crime.

         15                 Victims are also looking for

         16  accountability. Because while the criminal justice

         17  system holds the perpetrator accountable to the

         18  state for their actions, the civil justice system

         19  can hold the perpetrator directly accountable to the

         20  victim.

         21                 Many victims simply want their day in

         22  court and have been denied that, because no criminal

         23  prosecution has taken place, the defendant entered

         24  into a plea bargain or the defendant was acquitted.

         25                 It is very important for victims to
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          2  go through an adjudicative process and have a judge

          3  or jury acknowledge that what happened to the victim

          4  was wrong and take steps to address that injury.

          5                 Thirdly, victims are often looking

          6  for a sense of control. Victims feel powerless, not

          7  only while the crime is occurring, but also during a

          8  criminal prosecution. They are often frustrated by

          9  their lack of participation and authority in a

         10  criminal case and look for further steps they can

         11  take to help themselves.

         12                 Crime victims are frustrated in the

         13  criminal case mainly because they are not a party to

         14  the case. The perpetrator's defense attorney can

         15  often have them excluded from the court room if they

         16  are going to be a witness. If they decide to enter

         17  into a plea bargain, sometimes the victim doesn't

         18  even know about that.

         19                 In a civil case no one can keep the

         20  victim out of the court room from seeing what is

         21  happening, and the case is not going to be resolved

         22  or settled without the victim's input and consent.

         23                 So, why should we address this issue

         24  legislatively? It is important to codify the rights

         25  of crime victims to make a civil recovery against
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          2  the perpetrator.

          3                 The criminal law is constantly

          4  changing, as criminals continue to find new ways to

          5  victimize innocent people, either through advances

          6  in technology or old fashioned ingenuity.

          7                 Legislative bodies aggressively chase

          8  criminals seeking to prohibit certain conduct as it

          9  becomes a problem. Unfortunately, the civil remedies

         10  available to victims are usually derived from common

         11  law and don't develop as quickly.

         12                 This initiative will help end the

         13  disparity between criminal law used to punish the

         14  perpetrator and the tort law used to indemnify the

         15  victim. A victim's right to a civil recovery could

         16  now keep pace with the cutting edge of criminal

         17  conduct.

         18                 Another benefit of this initiative is

         19  that it does not distinguish between crimes based on

         20  whether a perpetrator was charged or convicted. Many

         21  criminal cases turn not on whether the victim was

         22  injured, but on whether the defendant committed a

         23  criminal act and that act was proved beyond a

         24  reasonable doubt. The lower burden of proof in a

         25  civil case helps ensure that a victim's recovery not
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          2  be prevented simply because the perpetrator was

          3  either not charged or not convicted.

          4                 One of the important things that this

          5  bill does is extend the statute of limitations in

          6  certain circumstances for victims' civil suits.

          7  Factors of equity and judicial economy have led

          8  other states to create special tolling provisions

          9  which expand crime victims' window of opportunity to

         10  pursue civil remedies.

         11                 One equitable consideration is that

         12  all states have a significantly longer criminal

         13  statute of limitations for felonies than the civil

         14  statute of limitations for injuries suffered in the

         15  very same crime.

         16                 The State of New York has no criminal

         17  statute of limitations for Class A felonies.

         18  Governor Pataki is seeking to eliminate the criminal

         19  statute of limitations for sexual assault. In a

         20  criminal prosecution where a conviction is obtained

         21  after the expiration of the civil statute of

         22  limitations, restitution may be ordered to

         23  compensate the victim, yet restitution is not an

         24  adequate substitute for the monetary damages

         25  available to a victim through a civil lawsuit, since
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          2  restitution is readily collected.

          3                 By extending the civil statute of

          4  limitations for crime victims, states address the

          5  inequity of having a significantly longer period of

          6  time for the perpetrator to be held accountable to

          7  the state than there is for the perpetrator to be

          8  held directly accountable to the victim.

          9                 As advances in technology, such as

         10  DNA analysis, make it possible to prove cases that

         11  once would have failed for lack of evidence, some

         12  states are extending a criminal statute of

         13  limitations to reflect the new technology.

         14                 Some of those states are reviewing

         15  their civil statute of limitations to determine

         16  whether a similar change is warranted.

         17                 Now, many prosecutors feel that it is

         18  important for crime victims not to pursue civil

         19  actions until after a criminal prosecution arising

         20  out of those same facts as concluded. Prosecutors

         21  worry that a perpetrator who is concurrently

         22  defending criminal charges and a civil action may

         23  obtain information through the civil discovery

         24  process they would not normally have access to in

         25  the criminal case.
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          2                 Additionally, defense counsel may

          3  attempt to use a pending civil claim to impeach the

          4  credibility or motivation of the victim in a

          5  criminal case.

          6                 Victims and their counsel do not want

          7  to undermine a criminal prosecution. Particularly

          8  since a criminal conviction of the perpetrator may

          9  help establish liability in the civil action. An

         10  extended civil statute of limitations may remove the

         11  pressure to file an action just for the purpose of

         12  satisfying the statute.

         13                 Now, during the course of a criminal

         14  prosecution, many victims are consumed by the

         15  criminal case and are either unaware of or unable to

         16  focus on the available civil legal remedies. An

         17  extended civil statute of limitations may allow

         18  victims time to recover enough from the trauma and

         19  emotional distress of the criminal trial to make an

         20  informed and thoughtful decision about the pursuit

         21  of a civil action. Such an extension may be

         22  analogous to tolling the statute of limitations for

         23  a person under a disability, such as someone who is

         24  a minor or who is adjudicated as incompetent.

         25                 Market forces discourage claims
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          2  against perpetrators due to an apparent lack of

          3  assets, and most personal injury attorneys working

          4  on a contingency basis would not accept a case in

          5  which there were no significant assets available to

          6  satisfy a judgment, even if liability were

          7  established through collateral estoppel. And while

          8  economic factors may prevent futile cases from

          9  clogging the courts, they also prevent crime victims

         10  from being fully compensated.

         11                 A defendant's present lack of assets

         12  is not a clear indication that he or she will not

         13  have assets in the future. It is possible that an

         14  extended civil statute may allow more time to

         15  determine whether or not it is worthwhile to file a

         16  civil action against a defendant.

         17                 Now, some states have increased their

         18  statute of limitation based on the type of crime

         19  that occurred. At least three states have provided

         20  an extended civil statute of limitation for claims

         21  based on sexual assault, and some of the states that

         22  have extended the statute and other states that are

         23  considering it, are doing so largely because of the

         24  rapidly increasing stockpile of DNA profiles that

         25  are available to match against physical evidence
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          2  collected from the scene or the victim.

          3                 In cases which the perpetrator of a

          4  sexual assault is unknown but DNA evidence is

          5  available, it is not unusual for a match to be made

          6  several years later when a known offender's genetic

          7  profile is entered into a state or federal database

          8  and compared to evidence from unsolved cases.

          9                 A recent study in the United Kingdom

         10  found that DNA evidence compared to the national

         11  criminal DNA databank produces nearly 500 matches

         12  each week. Just this past weekend, in my home State

         13  of Virginia, the newspaper had a story of a sexual

         14  assault that was solved after 17 years because they

         15  made a cold hit on a DNA sample.

         16                 Because of these technological bases,

         17  states are beginning to understand the human element

         18  of sexual victimization, that can prevent a victim

         19  from seeking redress before the expiration of the

         20  statute.

         21                 Sometimes it's a sense of shame that

         22  prevents the victim from coming forward. In other

         23  cases a victim might initially detect no injury from

         24  the attack, and years may pass before the resulting

         25  depression, alcoholism, drug abuse or sexual acting
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          2  out is associated with the crime.

          3                 Texas applies a five-year statute of

          4  limitations for causes of action arising out of a

          5  result of conduct that violates penal code

          6  provisions related to sexual assault and aggravated

          7  sexual assault. Colorado has a six-year statute of

          8  limitations for civil actions based on sexual

          9  assault. In terms of domestic violence, California

         10  requires that civil actions for recovery of damages

         11  suffered as a result of domestic violence be brought

         12  within three years from the date of the most recent

         13  act of domestic violence, or within three years of

         14  the discovery that the injury resulted from an act

         15  of domestic violence.

         16                 Calculating the statute from the date

         17  of the most recent act of domestic violence

         18  acknowledges that domestic violence, rather than

         19  being a series of individual assaults, is a pattern

         20  of abuse resulting in cumulative trauma. Now, rather

         21  than offering extended statute of limitations for

         22  victims in specific types of crime, the State of New

         23  York offers a blanket extension to all victims who

         24  have had their cases prosecuted.

         25                 In New York State, a civil action by
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          2  a victim of a criminal offense may be commenced

          3  against a perpetrator who has been convicted of the

          4  crime within seven years of the date of the crime.

          5  Now, that is only for perpetrators who have been

          6  convicted.

          7                 Or they can bring a case within one

          8  year from determination of the criminal action

          9  without regard to whether or not that person was

         10  convicted.

         11                 Of all of the provisions that were

         12  enacted around the nation, this statute most

         13  directly addresses the concerns voiced by

         14  prosecutors, regarding the complications that may

         15  arise from concurrent criminal and civil cases.

         16                 It also recognizes the hardship

         17  placed on victims asked to consider and act upon

         18  their civil remedies during a traumatic criminal

         19  prosecution.

         20                 Now, while it is certainly

         21  preferrable to litigate a civil action as early as

         22  possible, to avoid the fading memory of witnesses in

         23  the deterioration of evidence, there is no

         24  significant prejudice to a defendant against whom

         25  this provision is utilized.
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          2                 This is particularly true when the

          3  case is filed within a year of the criminal

          4  prosecution. An extension of the civil statute of

          5  limitations under that section requires a

          6  prosecutor, using his professional judgment, to

          7  believe that a particular case could be proven

          8  beyond a reasonable doubt. Also, much of the

          9  evidence or testimony presented in the criminal

         10  trial could be presented again in the civil action.

         11                 With regards to the burden of proof

         12  section in this bill, it helps victims clear an

         13  important hurdle in establishing liability. Our

         14  understanding is that under the current law proof of

         15  a criminal conviction nearly creates a rebuttable

         16  presumption of the underlying facts. Under this bill

         17  the conviction would constitute conclusive proof.

         18                 While this legal distinction is

         19  important, it is not extreme, this proposal suggests

         20  that there should be civil liability for the damages

         21  arising out of criminal conduct, when that conduct

         22  has been proved beyond a reasonable doubt.

         23                 All of the bases of constitutional

         24  protection have been touched, including the

         25  presumption of innocence and the right to due
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          2  process. Yet, in the name of judicial economy, the

          3  victim is not forced to produce witnesses and

          4  exhibits to prove the same facts that were already

          5  established by the prosecutor under a stricter

          6  criminal standard.

          7                 If I could address some of the

          8  questions that were raised before by the Committee

          9  in terms of how does this work when these attorneys

         10  handle cases on a contingent basis; if you have a

         11  crime victim who has suffered $10,000 worth of

         12  damages, to that victim that is an awful lot of

         13  money. If I incur $10,000 worth of damages, that's a

         14  lot of money. But to an attorney working on a

         15  contingency basis, that case is not worth very much,

         16  because he has got to determine whether or not they

         17  are going to be able to establish proof of having a

         18  verdict big enough that one-third of whatever is

         19  recovered is going to cover his time and expenses in

         20  bringing that case.

         21                 By having an attorneys' fees

         22  provision, it is going to help the smaller cases be

         23  brought to trial. Because now an attorney doesn't

         24  have to worry that the victim may have lost five or

         25  ten or $15,000 out of their pocket, they are going
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          2  to go ahead because the attorney is going to be able

          3  to recover that money independent of what is awarded

          4  to the victim, just based on the actual time and

          5  hours that they have spent on the case, and they

          6  don't have to worry that that money is going to be

          7  taken away from the victim, that the victim is going

          8  to recover less because they have handled this case

          9  on a contingency basis.

         10                 The National Crime Victim Bar

         11  Association offers referrals to victims looking for

         12  attorneys to represent them in their civil case. We

         13  get between 250 and 300 calls a month from victims

         14  from all around the country looking for an attorney,

         15  and I speak with many of those victims, and a lot of

         16  the victims, these were the types of cases we are

         17  talking about, where they are out 10, 20, 30,000

         18  dollars. Yet, I know that attorneys in this field

         19  often say, I am not interested in handling a case

         20  like this unless it is a murder or a sexual assault

         21  or involves some sort of catastrophic injury,

         22  because those are the types of damages that are

         23  going to bring about the huge judgments that they

         24  know will be able to cover the cost of litigation. These

         25  types of cases are normally under common law very
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          2  complex cases. They are similar to medical

          3  malpractice cases, they are very discovery oriented

          4  and very detail oriented and as a result they are

          5  very expensive cases to bring, by making it easier

          6  to present that evidence this bill will streamline

          7  the process and make it easier for victims.

          8                 With regard to the Crime Victims

          9  Board, every state in the country has a State Crime

         10  Victim Compensation program. But those programs are

         11  generally a payor of last resort, they only pay when

         12  there is no recovery that can be made from any other

         13  source, and when they make a payment there are

         14  statutory caps on the amount of money that can be

         15  paid and the types of claims that can be satisfied.

         16                 And thirdly, whenever a crime victim

         17  files a civil suit and makes a recovery, if they

         18  have received money from the Crime Victim

         19  Compensation Program, the program has a statutory

         20  lien to recover the money they paid back. So, the

         21  victim is ultimately able to recover against the

         22  perpetrator or some other party, then the crime

         23  victim compensation program gets back the money they

         24  paid so they have it in their coffers again to help

         25  other victims.
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          2                 Legal Services usually doesn't take

          3  these cases because they are prohibited from taking

          4  fee-generating cases, and the types of attorneys

          5  that we are talking about that handle these, they

          6  have handled routine crime victim matters, are not

          7  the type of people you see on the dream team, they

          8  are attorneys like Joe Awad and Ellen Geissmer and

          9  Michael Kramer in New York City, attorneys like

         10  Madeline Breyer, one of our members who, herself,

         11  she was a social worker and was sexually assaulted

         12  by the superintendent of our apartment building. She

         13  filed a civil action, she won, and she used the

         14  proceeds from that case to put herself through law

         15  school, and now she dedicates her practice to

         16  representing crime victims in civil cases.

         17                 Yes, this happens now. We maintain a

         18  database of over 11,000 case summaries, and they are

         19  all civil cases arising out of criminal acts. We

         20  have just been collecting for about the last ten

         21  years, and we only collect those cases if they are

         22  primarily cases where it is a published judicial

         23  opinion that has gone up on appeal, and we know that

         24  less than five percent of all cases that are brought

         25  ever end up on appeal. So, we are only seeing a tiny
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          2  percentage representing the actual cases that have

          3  been brought on behalf of crime victims in this

          4  country.

          5                 So, yes, it happens now, but it is

          6  those people that have the resources or that have

          7  the most catastrophic cases that are most likely to

          8  be able to get into civil court. It is the victims

          9  who have smaller losses, smaller on a relative

         10  scale, because they are huge to them, that usually

         11  are not able to find an attorney to take their case.

         12                 In conclusion, let me say that as

         13  legislatures begin to understand the challenges

         14  faced by crime victims, they are continuing to

         15  identify and attempt to resolve some of the barriers

         16  that have traditionally, though unintentionally,

         17  thwarted a victim's attempt to secure civil justice.

         18                 The National Crime Victim Bar

         19  Association encourages you to pass this legislation,

         20  and any other statutory provisions that increase a

         21  crime victims opportunity to make a civil recovery.

         22                 Thank you. And I will be happy to

         23  answer any questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         25  much. Are there any questions?
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          2                 Council Member Eldridge.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr. Dion,

          4  this is the presumption that if we had this law that

          5  this would happen, but is there any research on what

          6  in fact the assets or income of perpetrators of the

          7  kind of violent crime we are talking about, what

          8  they are? And why would an attorney feel stronger --

          9  I mean, in my mind I am picturing the Defendant and

         10  the person who has been convicted to be a person who

         11  is not affluent at all. If in fact they have been

         12  convicted and serve jail time, then they don't even

         13  have a job at the time that they are being sued. Why

         14  would an attorney feel more secure that he is going

         15  to get his attorney fee from this defendant and not

         16  if he doesn't feel that the victim of the crime

         17  would be able to get large enough sum of money on

         18  the contingency, to pay him on a contingency basis?

         19                 MR. DION: Well, with all due respect,

         20  I think that your view of the assets of criminal

         21  perpetrators is rather stereotypical. Those are the

         22  perpetrators who are in -- who maybe have been

         23  convicted and have been incarcerated, that is not

         24  necessarily true of perpetrators in general. People

         25  of every type of financial status commit crimes, and
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          2  commit violent crimes. What we have seen is the

          3  cases where a perpetrator is most likely to have

          4  assets to satisfy a judgment, are cases of sexual

          5  assault, stalking and child sex abuse. Those are the

          6  crimes where the perpetrator tends to have that

          7  Jeckle and Hyde personality. They look like such a

          8  nice upstanding citizen, but they have a dark side.

          9  The nice upstanding citizen side tends to have a job

         10  and assets, and often times the people who commit

         11  violent crimes who have better assets are better

         12  able to manage avoiding incarceration.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: That is why

         14  we amended the original bill that I understand, the

         15  original law, and I may be totally confused in this.

         16  The original law was to amend the human rights law,

         17  wasn't it? Or is that a different one? But this was

         18  to allow victims of domestic violence to sue

         19  civilly. So, that is why we narrowed it to victims

         20  of domestic violence.

         21                 What I think you may be suggesting is

         22  it should be broadened to be victims of sexual

         23  assault, child abuse or child assault and domestic

         24  violence.

         25                 MR. DION: I think it should cover all
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          2  victims of violent crime.

          3                 Because we are talking about private

          4  attorneys, I think there --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Can you give

          6  us a breakdown in New York City of violent crimes?

          7  How many violent crimes are -- do we have those

          8  figures from anybody, Mr. Chairman?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We can probably

         10  have them from the Criminal Justice or the Police

         11  Department. I think they would have them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I mean, that

         13  is the kind of thing -- that's why I think that to

         14  vote on this bill today is premature because I think

         15  there are lots of things that we are not looking at,

         16  and you may be perfectly right that I am being very

         17  stereotypical in my portrait of a perpetrator, but I

         18  am seeing the perpetrator as someone who is in the

         19  prison or jail system; is that not right for the

         20  civil things? You are saying --

         21                 MR. DION: No, they don't have to be

         22  convicted. It could be that this person was

         23  acquitted in a criminal proceeding, or maybe they

         24  were never charged because the prosecutor thought

         25  they couldn't prove their case beyond a reasonable
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          2  doubt.

          3                 You could have a person who is a

          4  violent criminal and in a -- and they put all of the

          5  evidences and witnesses before a judge and jury and

          6  the jury is, let's say they are 87 percent convinced

          7  that this person is guilty. In a criminal trial they

          8  are going to have to acquit that person because the

          9  prosecutor hasn't met their burden of proof.

         10                 In a civil case, they will clearly

         11  find them liable because --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: This is

         13  similar to suing somebody under the Civil Rights

         14  Act, I mean what happens now in the City, the

         15  federal, under the federal civil rights when you

         16  couldn't convict in the Criminal Court --

         17                 MR. DION: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: -- In the

         19  Supreme Court?

         20                 Why not?

         21                 MR. DION: Because under Section 1983

         22  that is still a much higher burden of proof.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I understand

         24  that. I am just saying --

         25                 MR. DION: It is like a similar tort
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          2  claim, it is just like your car accident that you

          3  talked about. And I think that because we are having

          4  private attorneys who are handling these cases,

          5  there are going to be market forces. If the

          6  perpetrator has no assets, has no hope of ever

          7  having assets, then I don't think an attorney is

          8  going to be willing to take the case. So, you don't

          9  have to worry about those people being attacked.

         10                 But I have talked to attorneys who

         11  said, you know, I have handled cases and I thought,

         12  well, if this person doesn't have anything, what are

         13  we going to get? And they say we entered into a

         14  confessed judgment with them. We settled it because

         15  the person who the victim had, you know, $50,000

         16  worth of damages and I told them, you know, we have

         17  got this, he has agreed to pay it, but let me tell

         18  you, good luck, if you are ever going to see, you

         19  know, a quarter of this, and he told me, you know,

         20  within four years this perpetrator had paid off all

         21  of that judgment.

         22                 So, I say, in the cases where the

         23  person can't pay, the person can't pay. But why

         24  preclude an entire category of victims just because

         25  you think the perpetrators don't have money?
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          2                 If there is a case where someone, I

          3  mean where someone has the assets and commits a

          4  crime, they should be held accountable.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well,

          6  because, I am very troubled at what we are doing

          7  with criminal law and then charges and then with

          8  Hate Crimes Legislation and this kind of legislation

          9  and that kind of legislation where we differ, the

         10  penalties, we are starting to increase the different

         11  smaller areas, and setting different standards for

         12  different areas, and I think this is opening another

         13  door to something much wider than what we are

         14  contemplating, and I may support it when I fully

         15  understand the impact, but I don't understand the

         16  impact now. I don't know what the average income or

         17  figure would be. I don't know what the cases would

         18  be. I don't know what the impact on the court system

         19  would be that is already so overcrowded in this

         20  City. So, it is a very difficult thing and I think

         21  we are not really prepared to vote on it.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member,

         24  let me just say, this is not creating a new cause of

         25  action, we are just basically facilitating a process
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          2  that current exists for some people, and we are

          3  making it available to all people.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But, Mr.

          5  Chairman --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Let me finish,

          7  Council member.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: All right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: When you look at

         10  the types of situations that may occur, you may have

         11  a perpetrator that was involved in assaulting a

         12  victim, the victim ends up in the hospital, the

         13  perpetrator has some money so he is able to plea

         14  down to probation, and you are stuck in this

         15  hospital, so this gives that victim --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You are

         17  still able to sue that person.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: You are able to

         19  sue it in the normal state of affairs, yes. But the

         20  main fact that the person wasn't convicted of an

         21  assault and just has probation, which is on the

         22  record, would make it very difficult for you to meet

         23  the burden of proof under the current legislation.

         24                 Under this legislation, you could

         25  have a perpetrator that actually walks, that is
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          2  adjudicated not guilty and still you are in the

          3  hospital with a broken arm, broken leg, messed up

          4  chest, whatever the case may be.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: You can

          6  still sue that person --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: You can still sue

          8  the person, yes, but your burden, as it is, is very

          9  difficult to meet because the perpetrator has been

         10  adjudicated as being not guilty, and now you are

         11  trying to say, well, he still hurt me, under the

         12  existing law you would have a more difficult task in

         13  winning your case than under this proposed statute.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Well, I

         15  would like to know how many of those kind of cases

         16  you would expect as a result of this legislation,

         17  and then maybe I could understand that, too.

         18                 First we have been told that this

         19  legislation will enable poor people to sue.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That's one of the

         21  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Then we are

         23  told that if you are a poor person and you sue and

         24  you don't do it on a contingency basis, that lawyers

         25  don't take the contingency cases because they aren't
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          2  large enough --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That's true.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And that

          5  lawyers in this case wouldn't take it either, if it

          6  isn't going to be large enough --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Not necessarily

          8  so.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Or if they

         10  don't think the perpetrator is going to be able to

         11  pay them. So, I mean what exactly -- I still have

         12  not been convinced about the urgency and to whom,

         13  for whom this is going to help.

         14                 I think Mr. Dion's point, though,

         15  about the specific classification of cases is a very

         16  interesting one, and it would be much more parallel

         17  to the legislation that we passed, rather than

         18  opening it up to all of the victims of violent

         19  crime, to open it up to victims of sexual assault

         20  and children sexual assault or child abuse or what

         21  have you. That would make much more sense to me than

         22  this blanket opening that we are doing, and, again,

         23  I just think we need to have another hearing.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member
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          2  Oddo.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman, I

          4  want to concede a point to my learned colleague from

          5  the Upper West Side, I think she is correct in

          6  saying that there may be convictions in the civil

          7  court that you have a difficulty in gaining

          8  judgment, and I want to place into evidence the name

          9  of Stephen Pagonis, because as far as I know,

         10  Stephen Pagonis still hasn't gotten his whole

         11  settlement from Reverend Al Sharpton. So, I concede

         12  the point to Council Member Eldridge that sometimes

         13  it is very difficult to obtain the money after you

         14  obtain the judgment.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         17  much, Mr. Dion.

         18                 The next witnesses, I am going to

         19  take a panel, and this will be the last witnesses

         20  for this particular Intro. Mr. Lawrence Prince and

         21  Mr. Clarence Patton.

         22                 Okay, please state your name for the

         23  record. Mr. Prince, you are going to begin?

         24                 MR. PRINCE: He can go first.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, Mr. Patton.
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          2                 MR. PATTON: My name is Clarence

          3  Patton, the Director of Community Organizing and

          4  Public Advocacy at the New York City Gay and Lesbian

          5  Anti-Violence Project.

          6                 AVP, as we are known as, the nation's

          7  largest crime victims service agency for lesbian,

          8  gay, transgender, bisexual and HIV-affected

          9  communities. For 20 years we have provided

         10  counseling and advocacy for thousands of victims of

         11  bias-motivated violence, domestic violence victims,

         12  victims of sexual assault, HIV-related violence and

         13  police misconduct. AVP educates the public about

         14  violence against or within our communities and works

         15  to reform public policies impacting all lesbian and

         16  gay, transgendered, bisexual and HIV-affected

         17  people.

         18                 We also provide free and confidential

         19  assistance to crime victims through a 24-hour

         20  bilingual hot line, short and long term counseling,

         21  support groups and advocacy and in Year 2000 we

         22  served over 1,000 new clients.

         23                 We would like to express our support

         24  for Intro. 853. We believe that civil remedies are

         25  an important counterpart and alternative to criminal
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          2  sentences that will be welcomed by both our clients

          3  and our community.

          4                 We are aware that the impact of this

          5  legislation on our clients and others affect by

          6  anti-lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgendered and HIV

          7  hate and other crimes may appear minimal at first.

          8                 I will use our clients who've

          9  experienced hate crimes as an example, although this

         10  would have an impact on our domestic violence and

         11  sexual assault clients, since we have concerns about

         12  75-2A that was passed and about its application for

         13  our community, so this would have an effect on some

         14  of our clients in areas other than hate motivated

         15  violence, as well, we believe.

         16                 In 1999, 41 percent of our bias

         17  clients chose to report their incidents to the

         18  police, and to date arrests have only been made in

         19  16 percent of those cases.

         20                 Therefore, Intro. 853 may only impact

         21  six percent of our bias clients overall, however,

         22  the impact of those victims having a civil remedy at

         23  their disposal should not be understated.

         24                 Clearly, many of our clients want to

         25  see their assailants face criminal charges and
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          2  convictions, yet many of them do not believe that

          3  sending their assailants to jail or jail for a

          4  longer period of time will change perpetrator's

          5  perceptions of gay people or prevent others from

          6  committing similar crimes.

          7                 Indeed, some fear that prison may in

          8  fact create more virulent hate perpetrators.

          9                 Additionally, the prosecution of

         10  anti-gay hate crimes can be so difficult for both

         11  survivors and/or their families and loved ones who

         12  most often endure the most base of homophobic

         13  rhetoric from defense attorneys and prosecutors who

         14  must often convince juries by teaching very

         15  difficult lessons in hate speech and cultural

         16  nuance, that a civil course of action with a lower

         17  burden of proof would undoubtedly be more than

         18  welcome.

         19                 With respect to the low percentage of

         20  our clients that this law would currently benefit -

         21  we are certain that while part of the unwillingness

         22  of anti-lesbian, gay, transgendered, bisexual and

         23  HIV-affected victims of hate to approach the police

         24  is base upon long-standing fears of revictimization.

         25                 Another factor in the low level of
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          2  reporting among our clients is suspicion that even

          3  if a perpetrator is caught, they will not be

          4  prosecuted and if they are prosecuted because of the

          5  prevalence of homophobia and the use of items such

          6  as the homosexual panic defense in criminal cases

          7  there will be no conviction.

          8                 Given that dynamic, seeing other hate

          9  victims receiving restitution for civil means would

         10  encourage other victims to follow through on

         11  reporting incidents to the police.

         12                 Perhaps most importantly, the passage

         13  of Intro. 853 will provide our clients with

         14  something that is proven to be most helpful to them

         15  as they move through their healing processes -

         16  options.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Mr. Prince.

         21                 MR. PRINCE: We strongly support the

         22  immediate adoption of the above -- of the

         23  legislation of actions by victims of violent crimes

         24  by the New York City Council because it will

         25  facilitate legal actions taken by crime victims to
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          2  address the outrages that they have suffered at the

          3  hands of perpetrators of violent crime by

          4  simplifying the legal process that they must

          5  undertake.

          6                 In addition, extending the statute of

          7  limitations will empower violent crime victims who

          8  may have initially been reluctant to act due to the

          9  traumas they had suffered.

         10                 That is our statement. If I may add

         11  that we are a civic non-profit corporation in New

         12  York State, and the bulk of our citizen volunteers

         13  are crime victims, individuals whose children, child

         14  was murdered or whose spouse was raped, and we are

         15  fighting back.

         16                 And I listened carefully to the

         17  dialogue by the members of the City Council, and

         18  whatever degree of measure this adds to empowering

         19  crime victims to fight back, you know, whether it

         20  affects three percent or 30 percent or 98 percent,

         21  it is not relevant. If it affects any degree, if it

         22  helps one crime victim a year it is worth passing,

         23  and it will help much more than one crime victim a

         24  year. It is ridiculous to look at it otherwise.

         25                 In addition, to limit the legislation
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          2  to child sexual abuse and to rape only is equally as

          3  ridiculous.

          4                 One of our volunteers, her grandchild

          5  was murdered, I mean the trauma that goes into that

          6  lasts for a lifetime, but extending the statute of

          7  limitations in order to allow them to, the family to

          8  sufficiently recover, in order to take civil legal

          9  steps, because it does take time to recover when you

         10  have lost a child, is an important and a very useful

         11  and meaningful thing that the City Council can do.

         12  And it will serve to prevent crimes, because

         13  criminals know what they have to stand up against,

         14  and they know if they are in New York and they are

         15  standing up against a tough City Council, standing

         16  tall next to crime victims, it will have an impact

         17  on the actual incidents of crime taking place.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         20  Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         22                 I would just like to make a

         23  statement, again, with respect to my colleague, but

         24  I have another picture of a perpetrator, and it is

         25  of a person of means. We all know that domestic
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          2  violence is not just among the poor, the lower

          3  income families. There is a lot of domestic violence

          4  in families where people have means, where they have

          5  a lot of money.

          6                 Listening to these two gentlemen, I

          7  agree with the comments they made, and I think a lot

          8  of our hate crimes are committed by perpetrators

          9  that are an outgrowth of groups. They are not

         10  necessarily working as an individual. They have been

         11  encouraged in their hate basically by different

         12  groups that they may be members of.

         13                 So, I think there is another whole

         14  population out there that we have to think of when

         15  we are thinking of who these perpetrators are. And I

         16  would imagine, again, not having firsthand knowledge

         17  but that a lot of these perpetrators really are not

         18  convicted, and there is another group that we

         19  haven't included, our seniors who are victimized

         20  and, again, are a group that are afraid to report to

         21  the police. So, I would just like to express my

         22  support for the legislation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 Is there a Brenda Baylor in the

          3  house? Okay, can you approach.

          4                 Please state your name for the

          5  record.

          6                 MS. BAYLOR: Brenda J. Baylor.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Push your button.

          8                 MS. BAYLOR: The red one? Oh.

          9                 Brenda J. Baylor. I am a victim of

         10  several violence, domestics, and just what can I

         11  say, just out in the street, maybe waiting at the

         12  hospital to be seen or something, but I find out

         13  what happens is that I call the police, whether it

         14  is my husband or whatever, and nothing is done, and

         15  I think the way to solve this is, they should be

         16  given tickets, just like they be given tickets for a

         17  car if you do something wrong, and immediately both

         18  parties should go in front of a judge. I think that

         19  is what is holding back and stopping all of this

         20  here, deciding or whatever, but the only one that

         21  can stop this here is a judge, and I think that,

         22  like I said, if I am having a fight with my spouse,

         23  and we are at it, automatically we both should get a

         24  ticket, appear into court, and under any other

         25  circumstances I believe that resolves some
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          2  situations and then let the judge either give it to

          3  a lawyer that is being paid through the courts or

          4  whatever, you can get your own lawyer. And I think

          5  that will solve a lot of violence.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: The purpose of

          7  this is to give you options. If the person who has

          8  harmed you has had a hearing, if they are arrested

          9  or if they are not arrested, if you can demonstrate

         10  that you were a victim, this would give you an

         11  option that would take --

         12                 MS. BAYLOR: What option? If I am

         13  riding in a car and it is something I did wrong, I

         14  am given a ticket, I have to come in front of a

         15  judge. What option?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That is a

         17  different situation than this.

         18                 MS. BAYLOR: It's not a different --

         19  you just don't have a car but you being battered, so

         20  instead of the law figuring out who is right and who

         21  is wrong -- I been messed up over, just because I

         22  been battered, so the whole thing is that the person

         23  that battered me never comes into court. So, give

         24  them a ticket to appear into court.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, we will

          3  call this to a vote. The clerk is here. If you would

          4  kindly call the roll.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Warden.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: One of the most

          7  important things in this legislation is that it

          8  gives those crime victims additional options. I

          9  think that is the most important thing. It allows

         10  them the opportunity to move forth in a civil case

         11  and to have a lesser burden of proof.

         12                 This is not solely designed for

         13  low-income individuals, although it will help them

         14  tremendously. It is one of these pieces of

         15  legislation that will help the citizens of this

         16  City. I will vote aye and recommend that my

         17  colleagues do the same.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eldridge.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I think I

         22  have stated my reasons for my concern, and I am

         23  sorry that Mr. Prince thinks it's ridiculous, but I

         24  really don't think my concerns are ridiculous, and I

         25  think that this vote is too early.
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          2                 I may be wrong, but I don't think it

          3  is ridiculous. I therefore vote no.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: McCaffrey.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Provenzano.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         11  five in the affirmative, one in the negative, no

         12  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         13                 Please sign the reports.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 The Committee is going to take a

         17  two-minute recess, and then we are going to move on

         18  with Intros No. 640 and 641.

         19                 (Recess taken.)

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We will now have

         21  a hearing on Introduction 640 and 641. I would like

         22  to call on the prime sponsor of that legislation,

         23  Council Member McCaffrey, for his comments.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 I appreciate a great deal your

          3  scheduling these two pieces of legislation for our

          4  hearing today, and I appreciate the great interest

          5  and leadership that you have taken in regards to

          6  these issues that have come before the Committee.

          7                 Let me just say at the outset before

          8  representatives of the Administration make their

          9  presentation, that many of us have for a long period

         10  of time thought that those individuals who are part

         11  of our public safety net in the City of New York

         12  come in many uniforms, they come in many phases, and

         13  it is our belief that as we end up looking at the

         14  type of risks that are faced by individuals, that it

         15  is important that we end up in a fair fashion

         16  treating those individuals who give of themselves to

         17  the public safety in terms of our legislative

         18  treatment.

         19                 Certainly, the concept in terms of

         20  uniformed status is something that is no issue that

         21  is new to this Council. This has been an item which

         22  we have pursued for a long period of time. It is our

         23  belief very much that the Departments that are

         24  involved in the City of New York with the uniformed

         25  personnel understand the complexity of all of their
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          2  subdivisions within their various members of their

          3  staff.

          4                 So, this is something which I think

          5  is a cry for justice and for equality, and, so, it

          6  is something that we believe very, very much is

          7  going to be good for the people of the City of New

          8  York in the long run.

          9                 And, so, Mr. Chairman, I thank you

         10  once again, and to my colleagues, I commend these

         11  pieces of legislation. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, seated at

         13  the table are members of the Fire Department and the

         14  Office of Labor Relations.

         15                 If you please would identify yourself

         16  in the record, for the record, you may begin.

         17                 MR. SCHLESINGER: I am Alan

         18  Schlesinger, I am General Counsel of the Office of

         19  Labor Relations of the City of New York, and I am

         20  here to oppose Intro. 640 and 641, pertaining to the

         21  Emergency Medical Technicians, Supervising Emergency

         22  Medical Technicians, Fire Alarm Dispatchers and

         23  Supervising Fire Alarm Dispatchers for bargaining

         24  purposes. These bills would remove these employees

         25  from the Citywide contract and would require
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          2  bargaining for an entirely new contract. The City is

          3  vigorously opposed to these bills as they represent

          4  an attempt to bypass the bargaining procedure and

          5  seek benefits for employees that were not obtained

          6  at the bargaining table. By granting uniformed

          7  status to EMTs and Fire Alarm Dispatchers, these

          8  employees will seek in bargaining to be afforded the

          9  same contractual and pension benefits accorded to

         10  uniformed employees.

         11                 These bills are also objectionable as

         12  there is a well-established policy against the

         13  proliferation of bargaining units. There is no

         14  community of interest between these employees and

         15  uniformed employees, and these employees are not

         16  defined as uniformed employees under DCAS'

         17  classifications or under state law.

         18                 Furthermore, we have not been

         19  provided with much justification for making these

         20  changes. Granting these employees uniformed status

         21  will also create a potential disparity between their

         22  contractual benefits and other similarly situated

         23  civilian employees.

         24                 Currently employees such as school

         25  safety officers, special officers, 911 operators do
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          2  not have uniformed bargaining status. A comparison

          3  of benefits between fire alarm dispatchers and 911

          4  operators in the past was in fact the subject of a

          5  federal discrimination lawsuit that resulted in the

          6  City entering into a settlement with the 911

          7  operators, and the 911 operators are not before us

          8  in any of these bills.

          9                 These bills were created in an

         10  unjustified inequality between employees represented

         11  by the same union and other civilian unions.

         12                 This also represents a change to the

         13  New York City collective bargaining law that was not

         14  agreed upon by a tripartite panel. The law was

         15  originally developed by a panel that included the

         16  City, the unions and the Office of Collective

         17  Bargaining. The Collective Bargaining law, which was

         18  enacted in 1967 was by that panel, and all

         19  subsequent changes have been approved by this

         20  tripartite group, the City, the unions, and the

         21  Office of Collective Bargaining. It's a rarely

         22  amended law, and this is the first time that it

         23  would be amended in this 35 years of existence

         24  without such an agreement.

         25                 There are also doubts as to legality
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          2  of this legislation. We have questions as to whether

          3  the City Council has the ability to make this change

          4  in the Administrative Code without state legislation

          5  and we also have a question as to the ability of the

          6  City Council to determine the classification status

          7  of a group of employees in effect, giving DCAS'

          8  statutory authority in this area.

          9                 I would urge you not to approve these

         10  bills and to leave the working conditions questions

         11  to the bargaining table where they belong.

         12                 Thank you for your courtesy.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         16  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 I am Bill Feehan. I am the First

         18  Deputy Commissioner of the Fire Department. I am

         19  here today to oppose and to express the Department's

         20  opposition to Intros 640 and 641.

         21                 These bills would amend the New York

         22  City collective bargaining law and give uniformed

         23  status to EMTs, Supervising EMTs, Fire Alarm

         24  Dispatchers and Supervising Fire Alarm Dispatchers.

         25                 The Department is opposed to these
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          2  Intros which we view as an attempt to obtain

          3  additional, but unspecified and unknown benefits for

          4  a certain number of Department employees outside the

          5  normal collective bargaining process.

          6                 We do not know what the consequences

          7  for the Department would be should these intros

          8  become law and this group of employees become

          9  uniformed personnel.

         10                 There has been no attempt by either

         11  group to sit down with the Department and explore

         12  the many complex issues which will surely arise

         13  should these intros pass.

         14                 At the present time only firefighters

         15  and fire officers are considered uniformed members

         16  of the Department. These members have certain

         17  benefits which they obtained over the years through

         18  the collective bargaining process.

         19                 These benefits differ from civilian

         20  Fire Department employees. Do these intros

         21  automatically confer the same uniformed benefits on

         22  these two groups of civilian employees? What about

         23  the issue of pay parity? We believe that these are

         24  only two of the critical issues which should be

         25  fully explored and understood by both sides before a
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          2  change in the status is conferred upon any one group

          3  of employees.

          4                 To confer uniformed status on any

          5  group of employees by fiat rather than through the

          6  collective bargaining process without any input from

          7  the Department or other involved agencies such as

          8  OLR and OMB, without providing any justification or

          9  rationale for these actions, is to us an

         10  unacceptable and dangerous precedent.

         11                 These bills could well have a

         12  significant impact on the Department's budget and

         13  consequently on our ability to fulfill our mission.

         14  To pass them without fully exploring these aspects

         15  is, at best, irresponsible.

         16                 Additionally, we see these actions

         17  creating a serious morale problem for other civilian

         18  employees, such as fire protection inspectors, for

         19  example.

         20                 We urge you not to approve these

         21  Intros and allow the Department to address any issue

         22  of uniformed status for non-uniformed personnel

         23  through the collective bargaining process, which in

         24  our view is the proper forum for such negotiations.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Question: The bills that we are

          5  considering include these groups with the City's

          6  uniformed services for collection bargaining

          7  purposes only.

          8                 Now, these groups cannot collectively

          9  bargain for uniformed status; isn't that true?

         10                 MR. SCHLESINGER: You do need

         11  legislation in order to get collective bargaining --

         12  to get uniformed status under the collective

         13  bargaining law. However, there are occasions on

         14  which people bargain for the support of the City in

         15  a joint proposal to get uniformed status, and as I

         16  understand it, there is a great deal of benefit that

         17  they are looking for, are things that we regularly

         18  bargain like sick leave.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes, but the

         20  uniformed status doesn't effect the terms and

         21  conditions of employment for these groups,

         22  therefore, these bills do not affect mandatory items

         23  of collective bargaining; is that so?

         24                 MR. SCHLESINGER: Well, I think they

         25  will in the longrun affect them. I think people will
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          2  say, you know, the next argument will be that they

          3  should have all of the benefits that are granted to

          4  other uniformed purposes and they will have to come

          5  to the table and bargain for that, and that process,

          6  we will certainly take the position that that

          7  process will have to go forward.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: But that is an

          9  issue of collective bargaining, is it not?

         10                 MR. SCHLESINGER: But they would then

         11  fall outside of the Citywide contract by virtue of

         12  the uniformed status and they will lose those

         13  benefits at that point.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Councilman

         15  McCaffrey.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Well, let

         17  me just ask, let's just take some of the inertia out

         18  there, for example, in terms of the way in which we

         19  treat uniformed personnel in some regards, and I am

         20  just going to give a couple of examples.

         21                 As it applies, for example, on the

         22  EMTs, have we ever had any EMTs who have been

         23  stabbed in the line of duty?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I'm

         25  sure we have.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Have we a

          3  situation now where we have gone to the point of

          4  asking them to wear bulletproof vests at times?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

          6  think there was a request by them to wear

          7  bulletproof vests after a particular stabbing and

          8  those vests are available if they want them, that is

          9  correct, sir.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: All right.

         11                 Have we had a suicide problem among

         12  those individuals, similar to what we have had among

         13  police?

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: Not

         15  that I am aware of.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Let me just

         17  remind you. Commissioner, that the first peer

         18  suicide program in the City of New York was set up

         19  for the EMTs.

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         21  am aware of that, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right. So,

         23  there is a problem there similar to what we have had

         24  sadly with our police officers.

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I
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          2  don't know enough -- you know, whether that

          3  comparison, given the two different sizes of the

          4  agencies, is correct, sir. I don't know the answer

          5  to that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: All right,

          7  understood. But we acknowledge that there is a

          8  problem, there is a comparison to the two agencies

          9  we will leave in obeyance for the moment. But we

         10  would acknowledge, which is why by public policy,

         11  which is why we ended up funding with them and the

         12  Administration certainly tacitly supported that

         13  funding.

         14                 In terms of the consequences or

         15  exposure to public health hazard, therefore, our

         16  EMTs, when they go to a location, have we ever had

         17  an EMT who has contracted a serious illness as a

         18  result of their exposure in terms of level of

         19  danger, comparable to life-threatening

         20  circumstances, perhaps different from a bullet or

         21  from a flame, but nonetheless, life-threatening?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         23  am certainly aware of a few cases, yes, sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: So, we have

         25  some of these indicia here, so when you say that,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            88

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  not you but the representative from the Office of

          3  Labor Relations, that we don't have any of these,

          4  these are the things that we are talking about that

          5  as you begin to look at what the definition is in

          6  terms of the risk on the job.

          7                 Now, I understand the example there

          8  in terms of what you are trying to say, that 911

          9  operators are not there, but having been married to

         10  a 911 person, some individuals may say that that is

         11  not the same. Those of us who know long-time

         12  experience, for those who are old members of the

         13  union from the early days, yes, there are great

         14  pressures among our 911 employees, but the question

         15  is the level of danger out there. And we say, you

         16  have to begin to look at it here. We understand here

         17  that we are sort of broadening the envelop when we

         18  are saying, yes, we acknowledge that, but the

         19  envelope should be broadened.

         20                 So, I throw that out to you gentlemen

         21  to say that this is a policy which is not going to

         22  be readily accepted, we understand that, but at the

         23  end of the day it is going to be the policy in the

         24  City of New York. It may take a little while, but I

         25  think it is the policy that is in the final analysis
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          2  going to be best for folks.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

          5  Robles.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 I hope you don't misunderstand my

          9  questioning, because your statement, I wasn't going

         10  to say a blessed thing, your statement has forced me

         11  to and I will tell you why.

         12                 I was not the Chairman of the Health

         13  Committee then, but I was a member of the Health

         14  Committee when at least the Emergency Medical

         15  Services were under HHC. I was also a member then,

         16  this Committee was not created, I was a member of

         17  the Public Safety Committee, that when the Fire

         18  Department came before, not the Health Committee,

         19  but rather the Public Safety Committee, in merging

         20  the EMS from HHC to the Fire Department, I recall in

         21  the testimonies and hearings the concern of a

         22  merger, that the Fire Department aggressively set

         23  the tone by saying that nothing was going to change

         24  and that EMS personnel will be part of the Fire

         25  Department in the status of the Fire Department.
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          2                 And, so, when I hear testimony that

          3  says, and I can only speak for EMS because I am more

          4  attuned, I became attuned to the Fire Alarm

          5  Dispatchers when they tried to disconnect all of

          6  them, and then some of us stood our grounds and not

          7  everyone was disconnected. But I am closer to the

          8  EMS since the 17 years that I have been in this

          9  Council. And, yet, it says here that allegedly they

         10  don't have uniformed statuses. Well, then help me

         11  out.  Next to Woodhull Hospital, I helped join you

         12  in building a new EMA station, and the uniforms that

         13  I see EMS wearing, other than the code of arm, which

         14  is the medical one, looks exactly like the Fire

         15  Department. So that if you are a chief in one of

         16  those red and white fire, 35th battalion I think it

         17  is referred to, looks exactly like a fire officer,

         18  other than the hat. And that is why I wanted to ask

         19  the question. Some of you came before us in a

         20  different committee saying that at least with EMS

         21  they would be part of the Fire Department, and

         22  please also remember that along the way many of us

         23  supported the first respond new program to have

         24  firefighters retrain into EMS tactics so that they

         25  can respond, because then the ambulance was not
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          2  responding quick enough, or the workload was so

          3  great. So far so good, Commissioner?

          4                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

          5  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Then how is it

          7  that we are making statements saying that, well, we

          8  don't agree because they are not uniformed status. I

          9  thought part of the merger eventually was to make

         10  them?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         12  Well, I think our Commissioner has testified that he

         13  and the Department would very much like to pursue

         14  the members of the EMS command who as you say wear

         15  uniforms that are similar if not identical to

         16  firefighters, and who perform work out on the

         17  streets, than non-uniformed employees who wear a

         18  uniform. Very much like our fire protection

         19  inspectors, that we had an interest in, and we are

         20  desirous of pursuing that. But we believe, as we

         21  believe today, the way to do that is through the

         22  collective bargaining process and not to say today

         23  they are uniformed. Because, frankly, I don't,

         24  Commissioner Von Essen, none of us understand what

         25  this means, we really don't know and we have asked
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          2  questions and we are not sure what it means.

          3                 Does it mean that EMTs and paramedics

          4  will have the same sick leave as firefighters? That

          5  may be a good thing, but if that is a good thing,

          6  should we not say at some point that newly hired

          7  EMTs and paramedics should come in with the same

          8  medical standards and physical standards as

          9  firefighters. So these are the kinds of things that,

         10  we are not opposed to the idea of them becoming

         11  uniformed employees, what we think is that this is

         12  not the process through which to do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Again, I am

         14  just trying to -- history. Because I may be a lame

         15  duck, but not a dead duck yet.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         17  Both of us.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And I still

         19  have ten months to go.

         20                 I thought the intent of the Fire

         21  Department, as we move forward on the merger, was

         22  two-fold: One was to merge the EMS into the Fire

         23  Department, making them Fire Department personnel.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         25  Which has happened, that's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And two, first

          3  respond, meaning Fire Department personnel, given

          4  training so they could respond, meaning engine

          5  companies, what have you, or ladder companies. The

          6  merger went into effect how long now, sir?

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

          8  Three years this past March, four years this coming

          9  March.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: In the

         11  timetable, when was this commitment supposed to fall

         12  into place?

         13                 I mean, with all due respect, and I

         14  don't know the intent, but some of us do things

         15  because we get frustrated and we don't move forward,

         16  and, so, I am trying to -- because I have too much

         17  respect for you, sir, and I am not about to take

         18  cheap shots at someone who, I must tell you, as long

         19  as you have been around, have been fair, at least to

         20  this Council Member, and a lot of good programs in

         21  North Brooklyn was created within the Fire

         22  Department, like motivating people of color to

         23  become firefighters and moving forward, so I don't

         24  want you to misunderstand what I am saying.

         25                 But do you understand that sometimes
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          2  people move forward because statements were made and

          3  three years have come and gone and all of a sudden

          4  we feel that there has been no movement to fulfill,

          5  although not written, although in the memorandum of

          6  understanding that's the intent, that that hasn't

          7  happened. So, I just wanted to make sure that I

          8  understood that, because some of us may not be

          9  around to see that. And, so, you know, with all due

         10  respect, the bills might pop up after three years.

         11  Do we have an idea of the timetable?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         13  believe our view was, and you can discuss this with

         14  the unions, our view was that there would be a --

         15  you know, that the union would make the initiation

         16  to the

         17  Department seeking how to go about becoming members

         18  of the uniformed force, and that we would work

         19  collectively with him. It's my understanding that

         20  this hasn't happened.

         21                 Now, you certainly can't blame it all

         22  on the union, it didn't happen.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, again,

         24  as fairness to me as Chair of the Health Committee,

         25  which I made sure because I didn't know that this
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          2  Committee was being created, because when we merged

          3  with the Fire Department, Public Safety oversaw your

          4  agency and then after we did that -- but I made sure

          5  that I changed the rules of the Council where you

          6  report both to --

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

          8  Both committees.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Actually now

         10  to the Fire and Criminal Justice Committee, but you

         11  also report to my Committee when it comes to EMS.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         13  Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And, so, in

         15  fairness, so I understand, what I have heard in the

         16  past is still in the same sequence, it is still the

         17  intent to make EMS part of the Fire Department, the

         18  uniformed services; is that what I am hearing today?

         19  Or is that something that we are walking away from?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: No,

         21  we are not walking away from that. I think what we

         22  are saying today and we have said in the past, what

         23  the Commissioner has said, this is something we

         24  would certainly want to explore, and I think as I

         25  tried to say, perhaps not very well, that the issue
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          2  that we have is the methodology for exploring that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Correct me if I

          6  am wrong, Commissioner Schlesinger.

          7                 If legislation such as this is

          8  implemented, wouldn't the net effect of it be that

          9  the effected unions would be able to negotiate

         10  collectively, directly, rather than through the

         11  Municipal Labor council, isn't that the only net

         12  effect?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         14  think that is a net effect. If it is the only net

         15  effect, I don't know.

         16                 MR. SCHLESINGER: The Municipal Labor

         17  Committee contains uniformed and non-uniformed

         18  forces. I think they would be taken out of the

         19  Citywide contract, that is certainly correct. They

         20  would have to negotiate all of those benefits all

         21  over again. And we would have to see where that

         22  goes.

         23                 To some extent, when you talk about

         24  the net effect, it is very difficult to figure out

         25  what the net effect would be at the end of the day.
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          2  Because, one, this is a process that has never

          3  really been undertaken before, and we have never

          4  waved the magic wand and turned people into

          5  uniformed forces before. And there are a lot of

          6  different groups that will be coming in, groups of

          7  employees that will be coming in and will also be

          8  essentially seeking the same sort of status, the

          9  Fire Alarm Dispatchers and the EMTs are here today,

         10  but I am sure there will be a lot of others who will

         11  come in and say we, too, wear uniforms, we, too,

         12  should be members of this and we would rather you do

         13  it than attempt to do it at the bargaining table

         14  seeking particular benefits.

         15                 So, I really can't answer your

         16  question about the net effect. The net effect would

         17  be, I think would be large.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: But reading it,

         19  they still would have to collectively bargain, it is

         20  just who they are collectively bargaining with.

         21                 MR. SCHLESINGER: They always will be

         22  collectively -- they bargain now with the City, they

         23  will bargain again on the City. There is a new

         24  round, as I am sure you know, there was a five-year

         25  pattern, there was a five-year contract from '95 to
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          2  2000, and we are in the middle of bargaining for a

          3  new contract.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, thank you.

          5                 Councilman Robles.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: You are from

          7  the Labor Relations, correct?

          8                 MR. SCHLESINGER: Yes. I am general

          9  counsel.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

         11  And, again, I just want to make sure I am hearing

         12  correctly, and I have got to focus on EMS, because,

         13  again, I was part of this merger. There is a

         14  difference between merging, and existing agency

         15  called the Health and Hospitals Corporation into a

         16  uniformed Mayoral agency called the New York City

         17  Fire Department, and I am not separating -- don't

         18  get me wrong, folks, I love you all, but on the EMS,

         19  I know exactly what the Fire Department testified

         20  before us. So, it is not about others coming in who

         21  wear uniforms, it is about what was put out there to

         22  us when we merged the EMS into the Fire Department.

         23                 Are you saying that the intent of the

         24  merger, when encouraging to take them out of HHC and

         25  put them into the Fire Department, now a Mayoral
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          2  agency, which is different from a non-Mayoral

          3  agency, see now as a Mayoral agency we have more

          4  control over them than we did when they were HHC.

          5                 And, so, I repeat, it is not about

          6  who else in uniform, it is about that at least in

          7  the EMS as I understood it, the intent was always to

          8  make them part of the Fire Department, and in order

          9  to show when the first respond, when people starting

         10  questioning whether, why are we doing this with

         11  firefighters, when their job is to fight fires?

         12  Again, the respond was, it's a career ladder so that

         13  those who are EMTs, the hope is that they would

         14  become, or be encouraged to become firefighters, or

         15  vice-versa.

         16                 So, I want to make sure I am hearing

         17  you correctly. In the case of the merger, and let me

         18  say I saw some heads shake, well, you don't have to

         19  be firefighters if you don't want to, but the fact

         20  was that was the intent. So, don't shake your heads,

         21  because I know what was said here.

         22                 Let's separate this other uniform.

         23                 When the merger of the EMS into the

         24  Fire Department, was the intent, and what was said

         25  was to make them have parity with the Fire
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          2  Department so they don't feel like stepchilds,

          3  because before they were merged they were not a

          4  stepchild, they were part of the Health and

          5  Hospitals Corporation. They were a viable, viable

          6  component of HHC. When they were merged, in order to

          7  convince us, the impression that many of us voted

          8  for was that they would become equal in the Fire

          9  Department. That is why I am having a little problem

         10  here.

         11                 And don't get me wrong, this is not

         12  -- let me be clear. Some of us who have gone

         13  through this, and this was not rehearsed, if I knew

         14  this was going to happen I would have rather had an

         15  empty chamber and ask the question, because this is

         16  about principles and what was said and many of us,

         17  who many of you came to us and said I am going to

         18  remember you, the fact was that we are still around.

         19  So, I want to be clear because don't mix apples with

         20  oranges, and that is why I am singling out the EMS

         21  because I know what was said to us, not on this

         22  Committee, because this Committee didn't exist, but

         23  on the Public Safety Committee and the Health

         24  Committee.

         25                 So, I want to make sure that we are
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          2  in the same direction and then I am going to meet

          3  with the president and I am doing to discuss with

          4  him why he hasn't requested that if that was part of

          5  it. And I am going to help the Fire Department

          6  because some of us, at least for the next ten

          7  months, will continue to pursue that commitment

          8  which was made when we merged EMS into the Fire

          9  Department.

         10                 So, please, folks don't clap, because

         11  then they take it as union and I am running for

         12  something. I am not running for nothing. The only

         13  thing I am going to run again is, with all due

         14  respect, if we overturn term limits, I am running

         15  for re-election.

         16                 MR. SCHLESINGER: First of all, I was

         17  testifying as to what I believe the net effect of

         18  this law will be.

         19                 Second, I would like to point out

         20  that the Fire Alarm Dispatchers are already here in

         21  these intros, so I can testify, I guess that the net

         22  effect is going to be that a lot of other people are

         23  going to come in.

         24                 Now, I am not testifying about what

         25  the intent was at the time the merger was occurring,
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          2  I was testifying regarding what the net effect was,

          3  because that was the Councilperson's question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And I accept

          5  that, but let me just say, Mr. Chairman, and I don't

          6  think we should try to lump the whole host when

          7  there was a group before this Coalition came

          8  together, that this Council as part of this merger

          9  was told something. And I am not saying that they

         10  don't have the right to, that's for other things.

         11                 But my point is, I don't think it is

         12  fair to put EMS personnel in the same boat when they

         13  were merged with certain commitments. And the

         14  dispatchers were not part of that merger. They are

         15  already there. And any other uniform who wants to

         16  come into the Fire Department, or wants to go into

         17  the job, it is a different story.

         18                 I want to be clear that there was

         19  commitments made in order for us to vote for the

         20  merger.

         21                 Now, what that time period was is

         22  something that maybe we should be looking into,

         23  because as the Commissioner said, it has already

         24  been three years.

         25                 I am going to follow the
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          2  Commissioner's testimony, which again I do not

          3  question, I will personally, personally talk to the

          4  president of the union to find out why they have not

          5  requested to become uniformed status, if that is

          6  what is supposed to be now.

          7                 I am just pointing out, please don't

          8  get upset because this bill is before us, and I

          9  always love when I get elected and yet people tell

         10  me, you can't do this, you can't do that. Well, with

         11  all due respect, that is what we have courts for,

         12  and that is what we have lawyers for. And when there

         13  is a difference of opinion between the Executive

         14  Branch and the Legislative Branch, that is why we

         15  have a Judicial Branch, which then interprets

         16  whether we have the right to pass these bills or

         17  not.

         18                 But these bills are before us because

         19  some of us felt, at least in some areas, that

         20  commitment has been slowed.

         21                 Some of us don't have the time on our

         22  side. Because once December 31st comes and goes, and

         23  that new group comes in, do you think they are going

         24  to remember what went on during the merger? Because

         25  many of them were not even here.
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          2                 But I am, Walter is, Larry, you were

          3  around, wasn't you? And so I want to be clear where

          4  I am coming from, and no disrespect. Again, I want

          5  to say, I have nothing but the highest respect for

          6  this First Deputy Commissioner, even when he was

          7  Acting Commissioner.

          8                 I have a lot of programs in my

          9  district that the Fire Department never implemented

         10  and was able to implement because of this dialogue.

         11  So, I don't want you to misunderstand, Commissioner

         12  Feehan, how I feel about you, and I don't apologize

         13  for anybody.

         14                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         15  don't misunderstand at all.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         17  Eldridge.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         19                 I was also here at the time, and I

         20  remember the vigors that the Administration

         21  exhibited wanting to have EMS come into the Fire

         22  Department. And I am always slightly intimidated

         23  when our labor experts start talking about

         24  collective bargaining, it is as if it is this secret

         25  ritual that lay people like myself wouldn't ever
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          2  begin to understand. So, I would like to demystify

          3  it a little bit.

          4                 I mean, the dispatchers and the EMS

          5  people join in collective bargaining, it seems to me

          6  the problem now is they are bargaining with other

          7  groups of workers that they feel they have left in

          8  common then with members of the Fire Department

          9  because they are in fact first line in emergencies

         10  and disasters. So, it is simply a question that they

         11  are not at the right bargaining table, and I believe

         12  that it is the Council's responsibility to decide

         13  who is in fact uniformed personnel; is that true? I

         14  mean, are we the people who get designate uniformed

         15  -- and, so, I don't think it is quite fair to give

         16  the impression that we are interfering in a process

         17  that may have dire consequences. I mean, I think it

         18  is more simple and we should look at it in a simpler

         19  way, and the fact is that there should not, I don't

         20  think, be this difference. The Sanitation worker, I

         21  understand the Fire Department has extended the

         22  definition of uniformed services or taken other

         23  specialists into the uniformed services thing, and

         24  three years after a merger is long enough and let's

         25  just recognize this and say these people are now
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          2  part of the uniformed services and therefore should

          3  be bargaining collectively at the table with the

          4  uniformed services. And I think that there is a very

          5  solid argument with the sense of using the emergency

          6  status as a reason to choose the group that they are

          7  going to bargain with.

          8                 Now, explain to me how that doesn't

          9  make sense?

         10                 MR. SCHLESINGER: Well, in the first

         11  place, Councilwoman, the collective bargaining law

         12  was, in its inception, 1967, created through a

         13  tripartite panel, including the City, including the

         14  unions, it was certainly agreed upon, and then it

         15  came before and it wasn't enacted. No amendment has

         16  occurred in that law in 35 years. It's been rarely

         17  amended, there was an amendment a couple of years

         18  ago, we have never had an amendment ever. It was not

         19  the product of the City and the unions sitting down

         20  together and agreeing upon what would be submitted.

         21                 Now, they can certainly bargain for

         22  that, and they can certainly come in and we can

         23  certainly talk about it, but I would say that there

         24  has never been an amendment without the City and the

         25  unions getting together and amending the law.
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          2                 Now, certainly there are other people

          3  who have an equal claim or will think that they have

          4  an equal claim with the EMTs and with the Fire Alarm

          5  Dispatchers, and I have tried to point that out in

          6  my testimony.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But I think

          8  what is confusing us is that three years after the

          9  merger, and as Councilman Robles has stated, it was

         10  our understanding that EMS was going to be, that

         11  they were going to be incorporated with the Fire

         12  Department and enjoy the same status, and that is

         13  very difficult for us to -- I mean, to say that the

         14  union head hasn't contacted the City about doing

         15  that seems to me to be begging the question a little

         16  bit, and not -- I mean, you guys certainly can take

         17  the initiative to do things that you think are what

         18  we want. I don't understand that part of it at all.

         19                 I guess we are going to hear from the

         20  people from the union, so they will be able to

         21  explain it.

         22                 But I certainly believe that the

         23  union and the members of the unions are presenting

         24  very valid points and their case is very solid and I

         25  would support it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: One of the things

          3  that is baffling me sitting here, I, too, remember

          4  the "terms and conditions," I think they were called

          5  at the merger, and your notion that the amendment,

          6  the items haven't been amended in your recollection,

          7  but isn't it within our jurisdiction where amending

          8  the Administrative Code, Section 12-307 (4) (a),

          9  isn't that the appropriate section we are dealing

         10  with and that definitely comes within this

         11  jurisdiction. That is one of my points.

         12                 And the other thing is, since there

         13  is no fiscal effect, direct, of this particular

         14  legislation, I am trying to get a notion as to where

         15  you see the terms and conditions of employment for

         16  the EMTs and the paramedics differ from those of the

         17  other employees that are represented by the

         18  Municipal Labor Council.

         19                 MR. SCHLESINGER: If I understand your

         20  question correctly, you are asking what the effect

         21  will be on terms and conditions employment at the

         22  end of the day --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Well, how did

         24  their terms and conditions differ?

         25                 MR. SCHLESINGER: The Municipal Labor
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          2  Committee, as I said, contains uniformed and

          3  non-uniformed people, and bargain on certain issues,

          4  and there is another level called Citywide

          5  bargaining, and they will come out of that contract

          6  and will have to bargain for their own terms and

          7  conditions of employment otherwise. But the question

          8  will be what will be the net effect down the road?

          9  And I think there will be a large effect, there will

         10  be a lot of other unions here that will come in and

         11  it will be very costly for the City and for the

         12  budget of the Fire Department. And there will be

         13  other people who will say am I not just like Fire

         14  Alarm Dispatchers? Am I not just like EMTs? And why

         15  should not we also be granted uniformed status, and

         16  why should not we also get the same benefits as all

         17  the other uniformed status, and those contracts will

         18  essentially be worked out frankly, they will

         19  probably wind up at an impasse procedure, which we

         20  will have essentially binding arbitration and

         21  arbitrators deciding on people's contracts, and they

         22  will also look at this. And what the net effect is

         23  at the end of the day, I cannot rationally tell you,

         24  other than that it could be very, very serious and

         25  very, very large an effect on the City and on the
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          2  City's operations and on the Fire Department.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

          4  McCaffrey.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

          6  Schlesinger, okay, you said that. How much?

          7                 MR. SCHLESINGER:  I don't know the

          8  answer to that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And the

         10  reason you don't know the answer is you don't know

         11  what negotiations it is going to result in.

         12                 MR. SCHLESINGER: I don't know what

         13  the negotiations will result in, I don't know

         14  whether there will be an impasse, I don't know how

         15  many other unions will be granted this by the

         16  Council. There is a variety of factors.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: So we end

         18  up at zero in terms of -- if this scenario goes

         19  through, you are saying then other individuals can

         20  come in, but only the piece of legislation of what

         21  we have before us, restricted to those two pieces of

         22  legislation, what would the financial impact be on

         23  the City of New York, if you could tell us right

         24  now?

         25                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: I don't know what
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          2  the impact will be, because they will have to come

          3  in, they will have to bargain, if we don't reach an

          4  agreement, there will have to be an impasse, there

          5  will have to be binding arbitration. I cannot tell

          6  you at the end of the day what the contract will

          7  look like after that whole process goes through.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And I

          9  accept that answer.

         10                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: And I don't know

         11  exactly what the cost is going to be at the end of

         12  the day.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I accept

         14  that answer and so the answer could be zero or

         15  above?

         16                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: Zero would be

         17  irrational.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay.

         19                 So, now we have agreed at zero or

         20  above, the question is we just don't know. So, it is

         21  a point of concern, but it is not a disabling point.

         22                 For example, to say if we were to do

         23  this that it would have a detrimental impact on the

         24  budget for the Fire Department, may be true, may not

         25  be true, it depends on how we, as the crouchers
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          2  (phonetic) of the budget, address this issue.

          3                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: I don't think that

          4  is totally --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And that is

          6  the capacity for us to compensate if there is an

          7  agreement in place, and we have done that constantly

          8  over the years in terms of the budget, you know

          9  that.

         10                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: In other words,

         11  when there is an impasse and --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: No, we have

         13  dealt with other items --

         14                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: And there is a

         15  binding arbitration, make up the money --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Yes,

         17  precisely. For example, where there is a shortfall

         18  in an agency budget, because of some item that has

         19  been collectively bargained, and the Council has in

         20  the past ended up coming along and we have ended up

         21  dealing with that financially. That's our

         22  obligation, we thank you for worrying about this. We

         23  will take care of the responsibility in terms of it.

         24                 Now, let us go to the issue in terms

         25  of the nature of what the status quo is, and you
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          2  mentioned in terms of the tripartite, that was

          3  created by local law?

          4                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: The Administrative

          5  Code Collective Bargaining Law was created by --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right. And

          7  it was amended, again, in 1972.

          8                 MR. SCHLESSINGER: I don't know

          9  exactly the date.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I am just

         11  looking at the local law of 1972, which was number

         12  one, which was done by two of our colleagues, I

         13  don't know if any of my colleagues could remember

         14  where Ms. Ryan was from, and Mr. Haber, Brooklyn.

         15  So, we go through these type of changes, it is a

         16  capacity that we have.

         17                 Let me just say to you that the

         18  reason why this is a little bit different than

         19  normal, is because we had a public policy shift in

         20  the City of New York, in terms of the merger, that

         21  in and of itself was a unique circumstance, and

         22  because of the unique nature of it, there were a

         23  series of items that were to be concomitant actions,

         24  and Council Member Robles and Council Member

         25  Eldridge are very correct in pointing out that these
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          2  were the items that were supposed to have been done

          3  to move along in the aftermath or the afterweight of

          4  the merger.

          5                 So, this is a little bit different.

          6  If someone comes in and tries to make a case in

          7  other areas, that's something else, and I think we

          8  are wise enough to say, yes, there have to be

          9  standards. We are not just going to give this to

         10  everybody, but this is a follow-up to a public

         11  policy. I know the union has made these requests in

         12  the past for consideration. We have been here with

         13  the Commissioner when the item has been discussed,

         14  and I have to say that Commissioner Feehan, and as

         15  First Dep has certainly done a fabulous job that

         16  way, I have to say Commissioner Von Essen has done a

         17  fabulous job. They have sat at this table and have

         18  in the past said that there should be more done. You

         19  know, I remember the day in which Commissioner Von

         20  Essen talked about increasing the pension benefit,

         21  and I remember turning and looking at the

         22  Administration representative off on the side, and I

         23  thought he would fall to the floor. But the

         24  Commissioner said that which was right and that

         25  which he believed was important for those
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          2  individuals who are members of his Department.

          3                 So, this is not an adversarial

          4  circumstance here. This is the way in which we are

          5  saying in the perfection of the public policy, this

          6  is the next step that has to be made.

          7                 We understand there are risks there.

          8  We understand ramifications are there. We will

          9  assume those responsibilities as we do all of the

         10  time. So, if it has no financial implication that we

         11  can say right now, other than it is above zero, if

         12  we can end up saying this is something that is

         13  within the capacity for the Council to address, and

         14  there is some question as to the state action, we

         15  understand that, that is something that lawyers will

         16  have to discuss further, we say we are prepared to

         17  take up that responsibility, out of a sense for

         18  justice, but also as the benefit for public policy.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         21  Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 Let me just first say to my

         25  colleague, Victor Robles, that I was here, too, and
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          2  although not elected, I was in a much more important

          3  capacity, I was a staff member to Council Member

          4  Ognibene, who was on the Public Safety Committee at

          5  the time, so I have somewhat of a memory about it,

          6  too.

          7                 Commissioner, let me ask you what is

          8  admittedly a naive question or an ignorant question.

          9                 If I had a high school student in

         10  front of me and he asked me, what is uniformed

         11  status, and what does it do for an employee or for a

         12  union, and why would they want it, could you give me

         13  a succinct but sort of comprehensive explanation of

         14  what it is that I could tell that student?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: No,

         16  sir, I can't. I think that is one of the concerns

         17  that we have. We are not exactly sure, and we have

         18  talked to a lot of different people over the last

         19  couple of days, and we are not exactly sure what it

         20  means.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So it wasn't a

         22  dumb question on my part?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: No.

         24  It was probably a dumb answer on my part. But we are

         25  not exactly sure what it means. Does it mean that
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          2  now we have to begin to bargain from ground zero?

          3  Does it mean that many of the things that other

          4  uniformed employees in the Department, the officers

          5  and the firefighters now have automatically become

          6  part of that, we are not sure. And I think that is

          7  one of the concerns we had. I think it was the one

          8  point we were trying to make today, we acknowledge

          9  that. Commissioner Von Essen and myself have said

         10  from the very beginning, well, I don't think we ever

         11  made a commitment that we would grant uniformed

         12  status, we certainly never gave the impression that

         13  we were opposed to talking about this and exploring

         14  it and working it out.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, that

         16  confounds me even more. I am trying to distinguish,

         17  of perhaps it is not possible to distinguish this

         18  desire for uniformed status and what these bills do,

         19  whether these bills grant uniformed status or

         20  something different, and it is tough to get to that

         21  answer, no one knows what uniformed status is.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         23  am sure that somebody does, I just don't know.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, does the

         25  union have -- I mean, I will save that for another

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            118

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  time, what they imagine uniformed status is?

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

          4  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Because to me,

          6  how do you get to B if we don't know what A is? And

          7  I want to be able to have an intelligent

          8  conversation with someone in my district when they

          9  say to me what is uniformed status and why do they

         10  want it, I want to be able to say well uniformed

         11  status does such and such. Well, what does it do? If

         12  we don't know what it is, what does it do?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: I

         14  don't know. I know what it gives our present

         15  uniformed people.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, I will go

         17  with that.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: It

         19  gives them a 20-year pension, it gives them

         20  unlimited sick leave. You know, there is a certain

         21  pay parity there.

         22                 Now, I don't know whether this

         23  automatically transfers or doesn't, whether it

         24  becomes now something you have to bargain for. I

         25  think the union probably could --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member,

          3  maybe I can --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Please.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: -- Shed a little

          6  light.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: It only allows

          9  you to bargain with group A instead of group B.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That is the

         11  definition of uniformed status?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: For this purpose.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: For this

         14  purpose.

         15                 Can I go back to having a discussion

         16  with Ronnie Eldridge about the other bill?

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will

         18  struggle with this.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         20  Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have to

         22  say -- well, I would also like to say to my

         23  colleague, Councilman Robles, that I was here, too.

         24  I was staff to Councilman DeMarco for 20 years, so

         25  we are all on the same page.
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          2                 I was about to ask the same type of

          3  question that my colleague Councilman Oddo asked,

          4  because stupidly I am thinking of uniformed status

          5  as really being uniformed status, not realizing that

          6  it has all of these other implications.

          7                 You know, I think of all of the other

          8  municipal workers who have union status in this

          9  City, uniformed status in this City, and are they

         10  all tied in the way the Fire Department is, or are

         11  there different sets of rules for different -- for

         12  instance, police, sanitation, are they considered to

         13  have uniformed status?

         14                 MR. SCHLESINGER: The Police, the Fire

         15  and Sanitation and Correction Officers are all

         16  uniformed status. There are certain parity

         17  relationships. There are certain benefits, like line

         18  of duty, that are in common with those uniformed

         19  status with those uniformed agencies.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And

         21  Sanitation and Police also have uniformed status?

         22                 MR. SCHLESINGER: Sanitation Police? I

         23  am not sure of what Sanitation Police have.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So in some

         25  kind of halfway response to my colleague and myself,
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          2  it is not really just talking about uniformed

          3  status, we are talking about all of these other

          4  implications that could come in so that if they sat

          5  down at the bargaining table with you, you would be

          6  able to say, well, if we give you uniformed status,

          7  then you have to give us bla-bla-bla-bla. So that is

          8  part of the whole package.

          9                 MR. SCHLESINGER: Well, I think that

         10  would be part of the whole package, yes. I think we

         11  would bargain about those issues, yes. We always

         12  bargain about sick leave.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Now, you

         14  are saying that EMS, in the three years that they

         15  have been part of the Fire Department has never

         16  requested to sit down with you? Or whoever it is

         17  they have to sit down with? The Fire Department?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: The

         19  Commissioner tells me we have never had any formal

         20  requests to sit down and talk about that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: What

         22  constitutes a formal request?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: In

         24  our case, the way we run the Department, to pick up

         25  the phone and ask us to come in.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Oh, okay,

          3  that is kind of informal really.

          4                 Okay, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 Are there any groups within the Fire

          8  Department, other than the firefighters that

          9  currently have this nebulous classification as

         10  uniformed status?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         12  Other than firefighters and fire officers? No. There

         13  are other people in the Department who wear a

         14  uniform, fire protection inspectors, for instance.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: What about the

         16  Marine Wipers?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN: The

         18  Marine Wipers are members of the UFA. The Marine

         19  Wipers, the Marine Pilots and Marine Engineers are

         20  firefighters who take a promotion exam for the title

         21  of Wiper or Pilot or Engineer, so they are part of

         22  the uniformed force. They originally come through

         23  the rank of firefighter.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: All right, thank

         25  you very much.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

          3  Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We will continue

          5  on with this discussion.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

          7  Sure. Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Mr.

          9  Chairman?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Yes, Council

         11  Member Eldridge?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I don't want

         13  to ask him a question, but I just want a moment of

         14  personal privilege. Council Member Oddo wanted to go

         15  back to the last hearing, and I mentioned this

         16  accident I had, and all I want to say to the EMS

         17  people and the Fire Department, that I couldn't have

         18  been better taken care of, and it was an incredible

         19  -- the accident was terrible, it was around the

         20  corner, it was unexpected, but it was totally

         21  wonderfully taken care of by both the EMS and the

         22  Fire Department and I wanted to thank you very much

         23  publicly like this. Thank you.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FEEHAN:

         25  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: That's very good

          3  to hear.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Mr. Chairman,

          5  may I also make a request? Because I learned

          6  something here, and I thought I knew it all. Not

          7  you, Commissioner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Please proceed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Since I am on

         10  this Committee, I am also on Public Safety, I am

         11  also on Environmental Protection, can we get a

         12  status of what uniformed status is about?

         13  Particularly because in the Environmental Protection

         14  Committee, we have created to protect our watershed

         15  our waters, Upstate New York, police officers. And

         16  since it was led to believe that the concern is how

         17  people are going to be running in to become

         18  uniformed status, maybe I need to know who is and

         19  who is not.

         20                 Because, you know, along the way we

         21  have created uniformed personnel based upon our

         22  need, including our watershed. And, so, since they

         23  don't know, and they want collective bargaining,

         24  then I think we should know, what are we creating

         25  and what is it we are giving them?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I think this is

          3  an issue that nobody really knows.

          4                 David Rosenzweig.

          5                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Good afternoon.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: State your name

          7  for the record, and please proceed.

          8                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: I am Dave Rosenzweig,

          9  President of the Fire Alarm Dispatchers Benevolent

         10  Association.

         11                 I would like to thank you, Chairman

         12  Warden, and members of the Committee, for allowing

         13  me to testify here today.

         14                 The Fire Alarm Dispatchers Benevolent

         15  Association represents approximately 200 men and

         16  women in the titles of Fire Alarm Dispatcher and

         17  Supervisors of Fire Alarm Dispatchers.

         18                 I am here today to speak in support

         19  of Intro. 640, which would grant uniformed status to

         20  members of the Fire Department Bureau of Fire

         21  Communications.

         22                 The 200 members of the Bureau of Fire

         23  Communication dispatch force are responsible for

         24  receiving and dispatching some 1 million calls for

         25  varying types of emergency assistance throughout the
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          2  five boroughs of this great City.

          3                 Working from five free-standing

          4  borough communication command centers, my members

          5  work 24 hours a day, seven days a week, including

          6  holidays to protect the lives and properties of

          7  millions of residents and visitors to our City.

          8                 Dispatch personnel are not completely

          9  reliant on computers to make determinations as to

         10  the assignment of life-saving equipment and

         11  personnel responding to emergencies. Each time an

         12  emergency call is received by our personnel,

         13  computers only assist in the assignment of the

         14  nearest equipment. However, for each call our

         15  members have to make an instantaneous evaluation of

         16  the situation to determine the number and types of

         17  personnel that will be required to respond, any

         18  special types of equipment, such as rescue

         19  companies, ambulances, hazmat, building collapse

         20  units and other special units of the Fire Department

         21  and other agencies.

         22                 Further, with the advent of the Fire

         23  Department's First Responder Program, my members are

         24  now also required to make determinations regarding

         25  responses by fire vehicles and other equipment to
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          2  hundreds of thousands of emergency medical calls

          3  throughout the City. They do this while continuing

          4  to maintain a high level of readiness for fire

          5  suppression, with an acceptable response time.

          6                 Additionally, Fire Alarm Dispatchers

          7  and Supervising Fire Alarm Dispatchers also play an

          8  essential role in responding to scenes of major

          9  fires, building collapses, plane crashes,

         10  explosions, significant hazmat incidents and other

         11  major emergencies with the Fire Department's Field

         12  Communication Unit and/or their command vehicle,

         13  which is the tractor trailer, to provide on-scene

         14  emergency communications and coordination, usually

         15  at the incident Command Post, which is usually

         16  located directly in front of the incident. In fact,

         17  we are a fully operational bureau of the New York

         18  City Fire Department.

         19                 In addition to having wide discretion

         20  in the assignment of units and personnel responding

         21  to emergencies in the city, my members are often the

         22  first contact for hundreds, if not thousands, of

         23  people each year who are in imminent danger of

         24  losing their lives, such as being trapped in a

         25  burning building, serious automobile accidents,
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          2  water accidents and other emergencies. Counseling

          3  terrified New Yorkers on how to stay alive in an

          4  emergency situation is an incredibly important

          5  responsibility, which carries with it a tremendous

          6  amount of psychological, emotional, physical stress.

          7                 The actions of the Fire Alarm

          8  Dispatchers and Supervising Fire Alarm Dispatchers

          9  literally means the difference between life and

         10  death.

         11                 The duties of a Fire Alarm Dispatcher

         12  are not clerical in nature. Rather, they are a group

         13  of highly-skilled emergency communication

         14  professionals, who continually deliver the highest

         15  level of efficiency under the most trying working

         16  conditions. The nature of the tasks required for the

         17  job indicate the highly complex functions performed

         18  by the Fire Alarm Dispatchers. Not only do we

         19  receive emergency calls from distraught citizens, we

         20  are also required to make continuous utilization of

         21  the emergency radio system, and to continue analysis

         22  and implementation of dispatch protocols, assure

         23  that all communities of the City receive an

         24  emergency response within the shortest period of

         25  time, while continuing to maintain an adequate level
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          2  of fire protection during periods of peak activity

          3  so that no community goes unprotected.

          4                 In addition, Fire Alarm Dispatchers

          5  are required to perform daily tests of the Fire

          6  Department's Fire Alarm system, identifying areas of

          7  the City that require emergency repairs.

          8                 In addition, my members are required

          9  to continually monitor and adjust power supplies so

         10  that the system continues to provide adequate

         11  emergency protection to all areas of the City.

         12  Further, each of the five department communication

         13  officers has its own distinct and unique power

         14  plant. Under the direct supervision of the tour

         15  supervisor, which is the supervising dispatcher, in

         16  the event of an electrical failure, a voltage

         17  reduction or brownout, these auxiliary plants is

         18  placed in service and remain in place until the

         19  arrival of a Fire Department electrician, which can

         20  take as much time as a few hours.

         21                 If, in fact, the system does not

         22  start, it is the responsibility of the tour

         23  supervisor and the Fire Alarm Dispatchers on duty to

         24  manually start this emergency equipment, so that

         25  continuation of emergency operations go on
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          2  uninterrupted.

          3                 Therefore, because of the nature of

          4  the skills required to perform this myriad of

          5  complex duties, the City has concluded in the

          6  Citywide contract, Article V, Section 16, our

          7  classification as emergency personnel, along with

          8  EMS employees. The City, in effect, has indicated,

          9  that these titles based on their own entry level and

         10  performance requirements should have been placed in

         11  the uniformed force many years ago.

         12                 The job of a Fire Alarm Dispatcher

         13  and Supervising Fire Alarm Dispatcher comes with an

         14  incredible amount of responsibility, as well as a

         15  tremendous amount of physical and emotional stress.

         16  Due to the limited number of personnel with

         17  approximately 160 dispatchers and 35 supervisors, we

         18  are forced to work extraordinary amounts of

         19  overtime, as well as ordered involuntary overtime.

         20  This contributes to the higher than normal instances

         21  of occupational diseases, such as hypertension,

         22  cardiac and diabetic problems, as well as other

         23  stress-related ailments, which are all too common to

         24  our workforce.

         25                 High divorce rates are also common as
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          2  normal family life is regularly disrupted by the

          3  long hours and stressful nature of our job.

          4                 That being said, you should also note

          5  that the level of professionalism and the enthusiasm

          6  of our members is extraordinary. And they are in

          7  every way a fully operational part of the New York

          8  City Fire Department's emergency response function.

          9                 Due to the effort of only 200

         10  dispatchers, the New York City Fire Department

         11  continues to maintain the fastest processing time in

         12  the country, with an average processing time of 45

         13  seconds, that is central office processing time.

         14  And, of course, we are the first step in the fire

         15  suppression. If we do not do our job properly, fires

         16  can and will get much larger. So we are definitely

         17  involved in fire suppression at the first step.

         18                 Passage of this introduction before

         19  you today will finally recognize the importance of

         20  the work by my members by granting them equal

         21  recognition. That is what this is all about,

         22  recognition and respect. With, and inclusion in, the

         23  uniformed force of the New York City Fire

         24  Department.

         25                 Enclosed you will find two separate
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          2  documents indicating both the similarities in

          3  working conditions between a Fire Alarm Dispatcher

          4  and other uniformed personnel in the Fire

          5  Department, as well as a job description utilized by

          6  the Department, to determine qualifications for

          7  entrants as a new employee in the title of Fire

          8  Alarm Dispatcher. They are both quite unique.

          9                 The New York City Fire Department has

         10  a long history of granting uniformed status to

         11  unique groups of professionals, which for some

         12  reason they seem to have forgotten what actually

         13  happened, contained within it. There was a time when

         14  Fire Department employees, such as Marine Wipers,

         15  Marine Oilers, Marine Engineers, Marine Pilots, and

         16  also as well Arson Investigators, yes, the Fire

         17  Marshals today were civilians and they were

         18  civilians when I came into the Fire Department 33

         19  years ago. So, we are all civilian members of the

         20  Fire Department. Over the years all of these titles

         21  have been brought into the uniformed force of the

         22  Department, thereby uniting with the Department the

         23  uniformed agency, making these titles uniform,

         24  beginning as far back with the Mayor Lindsay

         25  Administration, joined these groups with other
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          2  groups of City workers who are uniformed, including

          3  Firefighters, Police Officers, Corrections Officers

          4  and our colleagues of the New York Sanitation

          5  Department, who are also uniformed. They didn't seem

          6  to know if they were uniformed or not, but they are.

          7  They are in the uniformed coalition.

          8                 It is my strong opinion that for far

          9  too long dispatcher members and, more recently, the

         10  members of the Emergency Medical Service Command,

         11  have been left out of the Fire Department family, by

         12  denying them uniformed status. That these two

         13  extremely important operational units of the

         14  Department have remained civilians in a Department

         15  where even our colleagues in formerly civilian

         16  titles have all been brought into the uniformed

         17  force has created a second-class citizenship for my

         18  members and also for the members of the EMS command.

         19                 This is a no cost bill. Additionally,

         20  passage into law of the uniformed status for both my

         21  members and EMS is not about parity. A grant of

         22  uniformed status by the City Council, in no way

         23  grants any new benefits, financial or otherwise, to

         24  any member of either service. What it finally does,

         25  however, is allows us to negotiate our future
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          2  contracts alongside the other members of our

          3  Department, as well as with other emergency and

          4  sanitation workers, rather than sitting at a table

          5  with extremely honorable, yet unrelated, civilian

          6  titles. Granting uniformed status would finally

          7  enable us to bargain in the same manner with those

          8  whose jobs we most closely resemble.

          9                 The needs of emergency workers vary

         10  greatly from the needs of the many thousands of

         11  hard-working clerical and administrative employees

         12  throughout our City. That is what uniformed status

         13  is all about - acknowledging the similarities

         14  between the groups of workers.

         15                 I must repeat, your grant of

         16  uniformed status to our members does not carry with

         17  it any financial burden to the City of New York. The

         18  pension system or anything else. We will still have

         19  to collectively bargain for all of the items that we

         20  have traditionally bargained for. It is a simple

         21  question of sitting at a bargaining table along with

         22  the rest of the emergency workers, as well as

         23  Sanitation workers of our City, rather than our

         24  colleagues in unrelated civilian titles in City

         25  government.
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          2                 Finally, I would like to note that it

          3  is the City Council that has the right and the power

          4  to grant this status to our members. This is not an

          5  item which can be granted through collective

          6  bargaining. It requires a legislative enactment

          7  which only this body has the power to grant.

          8                 In fact, it is a prohibitive item of

          9  collective bargaining, even though, as you heard

         10  today, OLR would like us to sit down at the table

         11  and bargain with them, in fact, the law says, okay,

         12  that it is a prohibitive item in collective

         13  bargaining. Only the City Council, the elective

         14  people of the City of New York has the authority to

         15  grant such a change in status.

         16                 Granting uniformed status to my

         17  members and to the members of the Fire Departments

         18  Emergency Medical Service Workforce will finally

         19  correct the inequity which exists in our Department.

         20  For EMS, it is a measure that will bring them closer

         21  to fulfilling the commitment made by the

         22  Administration when EMS was merged into the Fire

         23  Department, that EMS members would be treated as

         24  full and equal partners in the New York City Fire

         25  Department.
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          2                 Therefore, on behalf of my members, I

          3  most respectfully request that this Committee and

          4  the City Council approve Intro. 640 and 641.

          5                 I would also like to thank the Chair

          6  and the members of the Committee, who have been so

          7  supportive of the Fire Alarm Dispatchers and

          8  Supervisors of Fire Alarm Dispatchers in the past,

          9  and of course City Council Speaker Peter Vallone,

         10  for allowing us the opportunity to appear here

         11  today.

         12                 I just want to conclude really

         13  quickly, because I know there are other speakers and

         14  there were some things that were said.

         15                 First of all, what this is all about.

         16  It is not about money, it's not about parity, it is

         17  not about anything but respect. There are groups of

         18  people that have dedicated their lives to helping

         19  the citizens of New York, and we have not achieved,

         20  I am talking for myself now, 33 years in the Fire

         21  Department, I have been a second class citizen, and

         22  until I can achieve uniformed status for my people

         23  and the people that I leave behind, they will never

         24  be treated as equal workers in the New York City

         25  Fire Department, and that is the way the system is,
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          2  and that is the way it works together.

          3                 I am going to give you an

          4  illustration and then I will conclude. We all know

          5  basically what happened on September 26th, 1993, the

          6  World Trade Center. Every single company that was

          7  sent to the World Trade Center received a unit

          8  citation on the day of the incident, the day after

          9  the incident and the day after that.

         10                 When they recommended that the Fire

         11  Alarm Dispatchers also be granted a unit

         12  certificate, it is a piece of paper in a frame, it

         13  means nothing except that you are praising your

         14  employee. We were told that you are not entitled to

         15  a unit citation because you are a civilian.

         16                 Now, think of the lunacy of something

         17  like that when we answered 1,000 calls that day and

         18  we instructed more firefighters and more emergency

         19  people on what exists to use and what stairways. We

         20  did a phenomenal communication job and we saved

         21  lives that day, and they couldn't even give me a

         22  piece of paper. Think about it. The only way I am

         23  ever going to get my piece of paper, is to get

         24  uniformed status.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: We have some

          3  other witnesses that wanted to testify. I am going

          4  to ask my colleagues to hold on the questions. We

          5  are running on a time constraint, I have been

          6  informed that we have to vacate this room by 4:30,

          7  so I want to make sure that those that come to

          8  testify have an opportunity to get their piece in,

          9  and if there is time for questions at the end, then

         10  we will entertain them.

         11                 Can the next group come up? That

         12  would be Edward Keenan, Stephanie Velez, Donald

         13  Rothschild and Margaret Malloy, or Malley, and

         14  Patrick Bahnken.

         15                 State your name and begin.

         16                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Good afternoon. My

         17  name is Donald Rothschild, I am President of the EMS

         18  Officers Union, AFSCME, Local 2631.

         19                 Mr. Chairman, members of the

         20  Committee, thank you for allowing us the opportunity

         21  to testify today on Intro. 641.

         22                 Since the creation of the Emergency

         23  Medical Service in 1970, the EMS workforce has been

         24  treated as a non-uniformed force and a uniformed

         25  force, depending on the whims of management.
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          2                 What management had failed to tell

          3  you today is that we are subjected to the same rules

          4  and regulations as our counterparts in the Fire,

          5  Police, Corrections and Sanitation titles, but when

          6  we try to get even the smallest benefit, we are told

          7  you are not uniformed members. In fact, the former

          8  Mayor once said at a graduation of our new EMTs at

          9  our academy, you are nothing more than file clerks

         10  on an ambulance. Several years later that same

         11  former Mayor was transported by an EMS crew when he

         12  had a heart attack and was praising them for days on

         13  end.

         14                 Your professional EMS workforce

         15  provides a highly valuable service for the citizens

         16  of New York and often puts their lives in danger to

         17  save a life.

         18                 In the Emergency 911 response system,

         19  two-thirds of the emergency response personnel enjoy

         20  the designation of uniformed service. The other

         21  one-third, your EMS professionals, are considered

         22  non-uniformed.

         23                 We work under the most hazardous

         24  conditions and have a very demanding job physically

         25  and emotionally. We work side by side with our
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          2  brothers and sisters in the police and fire titles,

          3  we respond to victims of violence, often before the

          4  police arrive, and the assailant is still on the

          5  scene. We have been to uprisings in our prison

          6  systems, plane crashes, street riots, building

          7  explosions and collapses, fires and train

          8  derailments. We provided emergency medical services

          9  for the President of the United States, and visiting

         10  heads of state.

         11                 We play major roles in every large

         12  scale single event this City hosts, from the New

         13  York City Marathon to the Victory Parades of our

         14  sports teams. We even provided medical assistance to

         15  other cities and countries such as Bosnia and the

         16  Federal Building in Oklahoma City. You name it and

         17  we have done it. But if one of us gets hurt, we do

         18  not enjoy the same benefits that our fellow

         19  emergency response providers have.

         20                 We handle over 1 million calls for

         21  assistance each year with a staff of under 3,000. We

         22  have suffered serious injuries and we are subjected

         23  to serious illnesses and diseases that we encounter

         24  on a daily basis. How many of us have been injured

         25  or became infected by treating a patient? How many
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          2  of us have died before reaching the age of 60? The

          3  numbers are staggering.

          4                 We realize that the granting of

          5  uniformed service status to the EMS workforce is not

          6  a magic bullet or a cure-all. The benefits that are

          7  currently enjoyed by our brothers and sisters and

          8  the other uniformed forces were gotten through hard

          9  collective bargaining.

         10                 We are not asking you to grant us the

         11  same benefits that they currently enjoy, rather we

         12  are asking you to allow us to be on the same level

         13  playing field so that we can negotiate as a

         14  uniformed force.

         15                 Too many times we are told by the

         16  Office of Labor Relations those benefits are for

         17  uniformed personnel only, don't even ask us.

         18                 There will be one immediate

         19  improvement with the granting of uniformed service

         20  status designation to the EMS workforce. Our morale,

         21  which is at an all-time low, will be greatly

         22  enhanced.

         23                 Your EMS professionals are there 24

         24  hours a day, seven days a week, in all types of

         25  conditions. Your EMS professionals have given their
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          2  sweat, blood an even our lives to ensure that New

          3  Yorkers receive the highest quality pre-hospital

          4  emergency care that they deserve.

          5                 It is time that this City gives this

          6  highly dedicated workforce the recognition that it

          7  so richly deserves.

          8                 We request to be recognized for our

          9  dedication for the citizens of New York and for the

         10  skillful service that we provide. We deserve the

         11  designation of a uniformed force. On behalf of the

         12  EMS professionals, I thank you for your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Next.

         16                 MS. VELEZ: Good afternoon, Chairman

         17  Warden, members of the Committee. My name is

         18  Stephanie Velez, I am the Director of the

         19  Professional Division of District Council 37, and on

         20  behalf of our Administrator Lee Saunders, I know you

         21  have heard a lot of testimony today, but we just

         22  wanted to be on record in full support of Intro. 641

         23  and hoped that you would support it as well.

         24                 MR. KEENAN: Good afternoon, Chairman

         25  Warden, and members of this honorable Committee. My
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          2  name is Patrick Keenan, and I am the

          3  Secretary/Treasurer of Local 2507, a union which

          4  represents the City's over 2,500 professional EMTs

          5  and paramedics of the New York City Fire Department.

          6                 I would like to start off by thanking

          7  Chairman Warden and members of the Committee and

          8  Speaker Peter Vallone for giving me the opportunity

          9  to speak before you today.

         10                 Just as an aside, before I give my

         11  testimony, for about two minutes while I was in the

         12  Council Chambers, I felt like I was in Roswelyn, New

         13  Mexico when the UFOs landed, when the general

         14  counsel Schlesinger spoke from the Office of Labor

         15  Relations.

         16                 For the record, the last round of

         17  bargaining that we had attempted to bargain with the

         18  City with, we were denied the point of going for

         19  uniformed status by the Office of Labor Relations,

         20  and it was taken off the agenda by the City.

         21                 With that said, the subject at hand

         22  is Intro. 641, which when enacted, will finally

         23  grant uniformed status to the members of the New

         24  York City Fire Department's Emergency Medical

         25  Service Command.
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          2                 As you all know, our 2,500 EMTs and

          3  paramedics and the 400 EMT and paramedic supervisors

          4  who fill the Lieutenant, Captain and Chief Officer

          5  positions in our job respond to over 2 million

          6  emergency medical runs each year throughout this

          7  City.

          8                 As you also know, our people are

          9  exposed on a daily basis to all the risk faced by

         10  all responding emergency workers in the City of New

         11  York.

         12                 Our members respond to calls which

         13  overlay every City agency that we know of in this

         14  government and the City government. We respond to

         15  the scenes of shootings, overdoses, robberies,

         16  homicides, stabbings, fires, building collapses,

         17  hazmat incidents, high-rise elevator incidents,

         18  calls for extreme illness, involving every other

         19  type of disease known to mankind. In addition to

         20  auto accidents, plane crashes, train crashes,

         21  construction accidents and every other type of

         22  emergency that you could imagine.

         23                 Our members operate under subway

         24  trains, inside of overturned vehicles, inside fire

         25  buildings, be it partially, collapsed or exploded
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          2  structures and in the midst of scenes involving the

          3  most hazardous materials that the City has.

          4                 This is done day and night, seven

          5  days a week, 365 days a year. Our members have in

          6  fact been stabbed, pinned down in gunfire,

          7  assaulted. Our job is so dangerous that the Mayor

          8  himself has directed the bulletproof vests be made

          9  available to every single member of our service.

         10                 Many of you will remember that when

         11  we were first merged into the Fire Department

         12  commitments were made by the Administration that our

         13  members would be treated as full equals in the New

         14  York City Fire Department. While our relationship

         15  with our brothers and sisters and firefighting

         16  unions has improved dramatically, and while we stand

         17  fully supportive of the Uniformed Firefighters

         18  Association, the Uniformed Fire Officers Association

         19  and the Fire Alarm Dispatchers Benevolent

         20  Association, we, as members of the emergency medical

         21  service command are still very much second-class

         22  citizens in a first-class department.

         23                 As you also know, our members are

         24  sometimes called upon to make the ultimate

         25  sacrifice. Many of you know that recently EMS
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          2  Lieutenant Barbara Poppo, a 37-year-old lieutenant,

          3  assigned to a busy neighborhood in Brooklyn, who was

          4  also the mother of a beautiful five-year-old

          5  daughter, died from a heart attack suffered while

          6  she was clearing snow from in front of her EMS

          7  station, so that ambulance units could be able to

          8  get in and out of that station and continue to

          9  respond to emergency calls in their district.

         10                 Some of you may also remember Tracy

         11  Allen Lee, another young member of our service who

         12  died from AIDS that she contracted while treating an

         13  AIDS patient in a valued effort to save that

         14  patient's life.

         15                 Tracy Allen Lee also left behind a

         16  young husband, who was never able to have children

         17  of his own as a result of her contracting HIV and

         18  subsequently AIDS.

         19                 We also can't forget the death of EMT

         20  Christopher Prescott, a brave member of our service

         21  who was run down and killed by a repeat offender

         22  drunk driver while treating a patient at the scene

         23  of an auto accident.

         24                 Yes, members of the Committee, our

         25  members respond, our members do save lives, and,
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          2  yes, sometimes they are even called upon to give

          3  their lives in service to the City.

          4                 Therefore, Intro. 641 is long overdue

          5  and absolutely necessary to recognize the efforts

          6  made by the members of our service, and the

          7  preservation of the lives of the people of our City.

          8                 When we were merged into the

          9  Department, the City committed that we would be full

         10  partners with our brothers and sisters and the

         11  firefighting side of the house; however,

         12  unfortunately, every move to reach any form of

         13  equity, not parity, just equity, with our brothers

         14  and sisters who are firefighters, has been attacked

         15  by the Administration.

         16                 It has been the City Council, which

         17  has helped us to advance our position in some degree

         18  over the years since the merger. Like our colleagues

         19  in the Fire Alarm Dispatchers Benevolent

         20  Association, EMS members are fully operational

         21  members of the Department who have somehow been left

         22  out of uniformed status that all other operational

         23  titles in the Fire Department had gained over the

         24  years.

         25                 For example, in the Fire Department

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            148

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  Marine title, such as Marine Wiper, Marine Oiler,

          3  Marine Pilot and Marine Engineer, have all been

          4  brought into the uniformed forces of the Department.

          5  Under Mayor John Lindsay, the Fire Marshals, who are

          6  the police officer status arson investigators in our

          7  City were finally granted the status.

          8                 Other City employees, such as Police

          9  Officers, Corrections Officers and our brothers and

         10  sisters in the Sanitation Department, have long been

         11  granted this uniformed status. It is impossible for

         12  our EMS personnel and our far communications forces

         13  to ever be truly and fully integrated into the Fire

         14  Department, as long as the civilian and uniformed

         15  wall remains erect.

         16                 Along with other civilian titles in

         17  the Fire Department, which have been brought into

         18  the uniformed force over the years, it is long

         19  overdue that the fire communications personnel in

         20  our Department had been brought into the uniformed

         21  forces, along with our members, who respond to

         22  approximately 2 million emergency calls a year.

         23                 As you may know, the grant of

         24  uniformed status is one that can only be made by the

         25  City Council and cannot be negotiated, because the
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          2  City of New York does not have the authority to

          3  grant this uniformed status at the bargaining table.

          4                 In fact, it is a prohibited item for

          5  collective bargaining because the power to grant the

          6  status lies solely with you.

          7                 You must also understand that this is

          8  not a parity bill. The grant of uniformed status

          9  costs the City nothing. What uniformed status does

         10  for our members and the members of the fire

         11  communications forces of the Fire Department is to

         12  allow us the opportunity to bargain, alongside

         13  emergency workers and Sanitation workers in the City

         14  as compared to bargaining alongside truly civilian

         15  titles who do not face the rigors of working in an

         16  emergency service.

         17                 One of the reasons that our members

         18  have never been able to appropriately bargain for

         19  the things that we and our families truly need as

         20  emergency service workers, is simply because in a

         21  manner of speaking, we are sitting at the wrong

         22  bargaining table. Granting us uniformed status would

         23  grant us the opportunity to negotiate for the things

         24  that our members and their families need to survive

         25  in a tough job. Neither our colleagues in the
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          2  communications bureau, nor our members in the EMS

          3  command are looking for a handout. We are simply

          4  asking the City Council to allow us the ability to

          5  collectively bargain for the things that we need in

          6  a bargaining situation which is geared towards

          7  emergency workers.

          8                 Therefore, in recognition of the

          9  incredibly difficult task by our 3,000 members who

         10  respond to 2 million emergency life-saving calls in

         11  a year, and in support of our colleagues in the

         12  Bureau of Fire Communications, the 3,000 members of

         13  the Emergency Medical Service Command of the Fire

         14  Department respectfully requests that the City

         15  Council pass Intro. 640 and 641.

         16                 I thank you, again, for your time

         17  today, and I would be happy to answer any of your

         18  questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Council Member

         20  Robles.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: You know, I

         22  have to confess that I wish we would have had them

         23  first and then had the City, and I will tell you

         24  why, because it is very confusing sitting here

         25  trying to understand the issues.
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          2                 But let me make four observations,

          3  which leads to why I am saying this. Both the

          4  officers and the EMTs, the union leadership were in

          5  the room when the lawyers, when the Mayor's Office

          6  of Labor Relations alleged said, or said, well, why

          7  don't they ask for it. And now I am hearing

          8  testimony that says, and mind you, I am not a

          9  lawyer, thank God, no disrespect to my dear

         10  colleagues that I love, and he is one of my

         11  champions on my Committee that -- I don't call him a

         12  pit bull like Stabile, but he sure is close to it.

         13                 Because I will tell you what I am a

         14  little annoyed with, Mr. Chairman. I think somewhere

         15  along the lines we need to really set the record

         16  straight. Because if he says ask for it, which is

         17  what he said, and if he is right, and I am not a

         18  lawyer, I am just trying to understand it, let me

         19  ask both of you, the President of the EMS Officers

         20  Union, and the President of the EMTs and Paramedics

         21  of Local 2507, or whoever you may be, have you

         22  officially requested of the Mayor's Office on Labor

         23  Relations for uniformed status?

         24                 MR. BAHNKEN: I would be happy to

         25  answer that question. My name is Patrick Bahnken,
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          2  and I am the President of Local 2507, representing

          3  the EMTs and the paramedics from the Fire

          4  Department. I recently, we moved our offices from

          5  Manhattan to Queens where we located a bunch of old

          6  documents, and I thought it was just relevant to my

          7  administration and the administration prior.

          8  However, the demand for uniformed status has been

          9  put across the table to Mr. Hanley going on 20 years

         10  now.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Here is my

         12  question, because I haven't been around 20 years. I

         13  am going to pick up what he said, because again I am

         14  going to lead to what I am getting to, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 You have been present for how long?

         16                 MR. BAHNKEN: Two years now, sir.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Good. In the

         18  two years you have been negotiating, have you

         19  officially served notice and followed through when

         20  they said no in writing requesting uniformed status?

         21                 MR. BAHNKEN: Yes, I have, on several

         22  occasions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Would you

         24  provide this Committee with copies of those letters?

         25                 MR. BAHNKEN: I would be glad to, sir.
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          2  I would also, for purposes of the record, about a

          3  year ago, because we had gotten "no" from the City

          4  so often in private, we decided that publicly we

          5  would make an appeal. And I caused to have published

          6  in the Chief Leader, a civil service newspaper, an

          7  open letter to the Fire Commissioner, about a series

          8  of non-cost issues and uniformed status was tops on

          9  them, and for the First Deputy Commissioner to say

         10  all I need to do is pick up the phone, well, I

         11  caused the letter to be published, a letter, I might

         12  add was responded to by Fire Commissioner Von Essen,

         13  and when we spoke about it at a meeting with

         14  Commissioner Hanley, from the Office of Labor

         15  Relations, I believe his response was, as long as I

         16  draw breath, the answer will be no. Now, I do not

         17  wish anything bad to Commissioner Hanley, but I

         18  think that the merger, believe it or not, in 26 days

         19  will be five years old. Five years we have waited.

         20  We have now come to the Council, who has been our

         21  defender and our guardian, and said we have asked

         22  them time and again, we can't continue to wait and

         23  ask them, that's why we come to you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me tell

         25  you why, and it is respectfully now, let me tell you
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          2  what I will tell you, like I told some other people,

          3  too, with all due respect, if you are a City worker,

          4  you would read the Chief because you are looking for

          5  promotion or what have you, but where I come from

          6  not too many people read the Chief. Like I tell

          7  people when they want to advertise, to better get

          8  LaPrenza (phonetic) and those kind of papers rather

          9  than the City Record, because not too many of us

         10  read that too. Although we all get them in our

         11  office and we are mandated by law to keep in our

         12  office, but I am going to tell you, very few

         13  constituents of mine read the City Record.

         14                 The point is, you have

         15  communications, may I respectfully request that you

         16  serve this Committee with those copies?

         17                 MR. BAHNKEN: I certainly will, sir.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: As President

         19  of the Officers Union, EMS, again the same question,

         20  how long have you been present, sir?

         21                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Since 1990.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Good. Ten

         23  years. Have you officially communicated with the

         24  Mayor's Office on Labor Relations requested

         25  uniformed status?
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          2                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Yes, we have. And the

          3  response we got back was it is not a subject of

          4  mandatory bargaining.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, let me

          6  say that, in fairness to this Committee, why don't

          7  you just pull out the last five years, serve notice

          8  also.

          9                 And I will tell you why I am doing

         10  this, Mr. Chairman. I was prepared to ask these

         11  questions, but now I am hearing testimony that only

         12  lawyers, and as they were discussing it, I asked the

         13  Counsel of this Committee, and we were discussing

         14  it. Well, it is our legal opinion, our lawyers, it

         15  says that you cannot request this collective

         16  bargaining-wise. And honestly, Mr. Chairman, this

         17  bill should not be called the Uniformed Status Bill,

         18  what it should be called is a Collective Bargaining

         19  Bill, which is what he said. You are granting the

         20  ability of the members to collectively bargain the

         21  parameters of what it would entail.

         22                 The passing of legislation does not,

         23  and again, I am a layman, but so far the things that

         24  I have seen, my personal evaluation is you are not

         25  getting nothing other than the ability, the right,
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          2  to then go to the table that they keep saying you

          3  should come and ask, which they did not confess or

          4  admit, but others are doing it, that you cannot do

          5  it.

          6                 So, Mr. Chairman, this is the

          7  hypocrisy and the sham that if you want government

          8  to be of the people, by the people and for people,

          9  and just look up there, folks, it reminds me every

         10  time I sit there, then government of the people, by

         11  the people and for the people better be honest

         12  enough to share, whether you like it or you don't

         13  like it, the truth, because the truth sets you free.

         14                 So, may I request of the Chair that

         15  our legal general counsel, Richard Weinberg, give us

         16  a legal opinion of whether they have the right to go

         17  to the bargaining table and ask for uniformed status

         18  before we grant them through legislation the right

         19  to go to the table and ask for it.

         20                 And if we find that it is our opinion

         21  that we are right in what we are saying, then anyone

         22  to allege that we don't have the right, that we are

         23  overdoing what we as elected officials have the

         24  right to do, then I think we need to start, at least

         25  for the next ten months that I have left, this term
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          2  of mine, and being part of this Committee, I am

          3  going to slap down anyone who tells me that it is

          4  their opinion that we don't have the right to do

          5  what we were elected to do by our constituency.

          6                 And, so, I want to be fair because I

          7  am really confused, and I repeat, I am sorry that

          8  you were not here first, because then those would be

          9  the questions I would have been asking the Mayor's

         10  people to see where they get their opinion from.

         11                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I will instruct

         13  our counsel to confer with the general counsel to be

         14  able to get back, and if you will provide --

         15                 MR. BAHNKEN: I will be happy to

         16  provide you with the request for documentation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: As well as the

         18  copy of the --

         19                 MR. BAHNKEN: The letter that we had

         20  published, yes, sir. And we anticipated that the

         21  City would come here and try to blur the issue of

         22  maybe you don't have the authority, maybe it is

         23  something we have to negotiate, and, so, we brought

         24  our counsel, Ms. Margaret Malloy, and I believe she

         25  will be able to cite to you exactly what the
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          2  authority is and all, and I am sure you will go to

          3  your counsel and --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And after you

          5  do that, Mr. Chairman, make sure she provides the

          6  Counsel to this Committee, so as we get our opinion

          7  we will have a collaboration.

          8                 MS. BAHNKEN: So, Ms. Malloy.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Would you please

         10  identify yourself for the record.

         11                 MS. MALLOY: My name is Margaret

         12  Malloy, and I am a lawyer, sorry.

         13                 MR. BAHNKEN: Don't be sorry about it.

         14                 MS. MALLOY: Mr. Robles has said

         15  repeatedly he is not a lawyer so he might not

         16  understand these issues, but I just wanted to

         17  confirm that your understanding is correct, that

         18  uniformed status, whatever misnomer that might be,

         19  the uniformed status, meaning the right to bargain,

         20  cannot be granted through collective bargaining. Nor

         21  is what the City might have been seeking, what the

         22  Commissioner might have been talking about, or the

         23  general counsel from the Office of Labor Relations,

         24  that they wanted to be asked to support the

         25  legislation, and also is not a mandatory bargaining
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          2  demand and so they can, and have, as Mr. Bahnken

          3  described, refused to discuss that repeatedly. This

          4  Council, this is the appropriate forum to address

          5  that issue.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: I am aware of

          7  that.

          8                 MS. MALLOY: And it has been addressed

          9  before. I think everyone knew that already, but just

         10  for the sake of having a lawyer say it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: No. But I did

         12  work for unions.

         13                 Council Member Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

         15  clarify, did Council Member Robles threaten to give

         16  the smack-down to someone? Or did he say slap-down?

         17  That is too much professional wrestling, Victor.

         18                 I have a quick question to Mr.

         19  Rosenzweig.

         20                 You spoke about the folks that you

         21  are sitting next to currently, in terms of

         22  bargaining. You called them extremely honorable, but

         23  highly unrelated civilian -- can you just provide us

         24  with some examples of who they are so that we can

         25  demonstrate your point about you are not grouped in
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          2  with the right or similar folks to what you do?

          3                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Absolutely. The City

          4  basically has divided the workforce in two arenas,

          5  uniformed and civilian arena. What is so

          6  interesting, the reason that I feel I don't belong

          7  in the civilian arena is because almost everything

          8  that the Citywide contract would have granted me, as

          9  far as benefits goes, the Fire Department says they

         10  either can't afford or they don't want to hire

         11  enough people to allow me to get it. So, it is quite

         12  obvious, if I can't derive benefits from the

         13  civilian coalition, the only thing I can do is go

         14  into the uniformed coalition and scope my own

         15  demands which will benefit my remembers, which right

         16  now they don't have any opportunity to get quite a

         17  few of the benefits that the Citywide contract

         18  allows the rest of the workforce, the civilian

         19  workforce in New York City. And the group that I am

         20  talking about is quite obvious.

         21                 There aren't that many people that

         22  work in New York seven days a week, 24 hours a day,

         23  so right away you are limiting the amount of people.

         24  Then you have a very small group of people that work

         25  40 hours. If you look at most of the people that
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          2  work for the City of New York either work 35, 37, 37

          3  and a half hours. If you take all of those people

          4  away, you end up with a very small group of people,

          5  and if you look real close you will find out that

          6  they are doing some type of emergency or

          7  service-related occupation to the citizens of New

          8  York, and that is why I want to be in the uniformed

          9  coalition. I want to be able to sit at a table with

         10  people that understand the kind of work that I do,

         11  understand the kind of stress and understand the

         12  other issues that people who work 24 hours a day,

         13  seven days a week have to face every single day. In

         14  the civilian coalition, the small group of people

         15  that are doing that don't really have a voice.

         16  That's what it is all about. It is about having a

         17  voice and being able to represent my people. So that

         18  they can get the benefit that they deserve.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: May I follow up

         20  on your question?

         21                 Are you saying that if a particular

         22  item is negotiated in a Citywide contract, signed,

         23  sealed and delivered, you are then told by the

         24  Department of, the Fire Department, that you cannot

         25  avail yourself of that decision?
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          2                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Yes. And they justify

          3  their reluctance to allow me to do that by the quote

          4  "emergency clause" that is in the Citywide contract

          5  that says that we are supposed to be treated

          6  different than other types of employees.

          7                 A perfect example is how are they

          8  banked time, which is a bank of time that people

          9  earn when they work a holiday. I have been fighting

         10  for ten years to get permission to get my people to

         11  get the holiday bank time, while some of my people

         12  have 300, 400, 500 hours in these banks and they

         13  never get the opportunity to use it because the

         14  staffing levels are never high enough to grant them

         15  a day off.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: How will that

         17  differ if you are in the "uniformed"?

         18                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: Well, right now if I

         19  have to go, as an example if I have to go to

         20  arbitration, which would be a perfect example, on

         21  the HPT issue, I would first have to get permission

         22  from DC 37, who is the collective bargaining agent

         23  for the Citywide contract, to even go to arbitration

         24  on that particular issue.

         25                 If I want to have my own contract
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          2  designed so that my people -- if the agency, through

          3  the collective bargaining process, knows that we

          4  don't have enough people, don't offer us HPT. If you

          5  are not going to give it to us then don't offer it

          6  to us. Offer us something else that will be a lot

          7  more meaningful that will not strip them or deplete

          8  them of a workforce.

          9                 So that is basically what we are

         10  trying to do. We are trying to design it so that it

         11  not only helps my members and also EMS, but also

         12  helps the agency. Because right now the agency is

         13  strapped by trying to comply with stuff that they

         14  can't provide.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay, an

         16  interesting thing came up also. Ms. Velez, you are

         17  from DC 37, correct?

         18                 MS. VELEZ: Yes, I am.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Okay. And you

         20  actually will be losing membership if this happens?

         21                 MS. VELEZ: Well, I don't know if we

         22  will be losing membership, but I think -- I wanted

         23  to try to keep is focused on what we are talking

         24  about. There are a lot of unanswered questions of

         25  what the result of uniformed status will be. I think
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          2  that we have always been an institution that has

          3  been concerned about the upward mobility and making

          4  career paths for our membership. We were

          5  instrumental in designing an EMT course to make

          6  members come from ambulance corps men to EMTs.

          7                 So, we are not sure what that is

          8  going to mean, but we have always been at the

          9  forefront of advocating on behalf of the members and

         10  what's in their best interests.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: And it's

         12  admirable that you are supportive of these

         13  initiatives.

         14                 MR. BAHNKEN: Mr. Chairman, this

         15  legislation, when enacted, like we said in our

         16  testimony, is no magic bullet. It does not convey

         17  upon us any financial grant, any benefit grant. We

         18  already have a three-quarters disability pension, we

         19  already have a 25-year no age retirement benefit

         20  that we had to do in spite of the Department's

         21  opposition, to address the problems with recruitment

         22  and retention. All this does is take the only

         23  non-uniformed employees group, in the 911 emergency

         24  response system of this City, and allow them to

         25  bargain with the City at the same table as those
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          2  people who have the greatest commonality of work

          3  requirements.

          4                 We are more than prepared to go to

          5  the table and collectively bargain. What the

          6  Administration has come here today and asked you to

          7  do is to give them yet another opportunity and

          8  another year to say no to us. It has been five years

          9  since the merger.

         10                 As many distinguished Council Members

         11  have pointed out, promises were made. The issue of

         12  uniformed status consideration was spoken to at the

         13  merger hearings, and in negotiations with DC 37 and

         14  the representatives of this union, and Mr. Hanley's

         15  office, and here we are five years later after many

         16  requests and then saying no time and again, we have

         17  finally run out of patience and we said we cannot

         18  wait any longer for the respect that we deserve and

         19  for the treatment that we desire and that we need.

         20  These men and women that are in this room today, and

         21  the hundreds and thousands that are out there right

         22  now, willing to put their lives on the line for the

         23  citizens of this City deserve no less, and to allow

         24  the City Administration to once again, and

         25  perpetuate treating us as the second-class citizen
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          2  that they have been allowed to treat us for, for so

          3  long, it has to come to an end.

          4                 The promises were made. They lied to

          5  you, they lied to us. Now is the time to hold them

          6  to their words.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 Any other questions?

         10                 Council Member Robles.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes. Again,

         12  Mr. Chairman, because I like to keep the record

         13  straight because it's amazing.

         14                 Mr., President Rothschild, you

         15  mentioned in your testimony on page two, that you

         16  said "In the emergency 911-response system

         17  two-thirds of the emergency response personnel enjoy

         18  the designation of a Uniformed force." Now, those

         19  are the One Police Plaza, the 911?

         20                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: No, police officers

         21  and firefighters. You are talking two-thirds of the

         22  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No. In your

         24  testimony when you said, "Your professional EMS

         25  worforce provides a highly viable service to the
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          2  citizens of New York and often put their lives in

          3  danger to save a life. In the emergency 911-response

          4  system two-thirds of the emergency response

          5  personnel enjoy the designation of a Uniformed

          6  force", who are you referring to in that?

          7                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: People in the field.

          8  The police officers in the field, the firefighters

          9  in the field. The other third is us, the EMS

         10  personnel.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay. Let me

         12  then ask, because I go now to my good friend, the

         13  President of the Fire Alarm Dispatchers Union, your

         14  members, now I am going to use lawyers' terms --

         15  scratch that.

         16                 Let me ask you something in terms of

         17  DC 37, because I think the 911 dispatchers at One

         18  Police Plaza are your members?

         19                 MS. VELEZ: Yes, they are.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Do they have

         21  uniformed status?

         22                 MS. VELEZ: No, they don't.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: They don't.

         24                 Any other 911 in the case like

         25  Dispatchers, and the Fire Department, you don't also
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          2  have uniformed status, correct?

          3                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: At this time, no.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay. And

          5  again I want to be fair. In terms of civilian

          6  component within either the Police Department 911,

          7  or the Fire Department 911, neither one has

          8  uniformed status?

          9                 MR. ROSENZWEIG: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Did you want

         11  to say something, Mr. Rothschild? I am just trying

         12  to set the record straight.

         13                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: I think you are

         14  confusing the Communications Center in One Police

         15  Plaza with Field Response, which is what police

         16  officers, firefighters, EMS personnel and fire alarm

         17  dispatchers. We do field response and there is a big

         18  difference.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, let me

         20  tell you what, and I am getting gray hairs, let me

         21  tell you what has been said to use more than once.

         22  When they wanted to eliminate all together the Fire

         23  Department Communications, Bureau Communications,

         24  remember those days?

         25                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay. They

          3  didn't, did they?

          4                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: No, they did not.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Why not?

          6                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Because we saved the

          7  fire alarm boxes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay. The

          9  point I am trying to make is that there had been

         10  attempts to eliminate certain components that we

         11  felt in joining with you very important.

         12                 We didn't mind the restructuring, but

         13  we would not tolerate elimination, and the Fire

         14  Dispatchers was one of those within the Fire

         15  Department that was targeted to be eliminated saying

         16  they were really outdated.

         17                 And, so, I just want to make sure

         18  that as we discuss this so-called, and I want to use

         19  the word collective bargaining, rather than

         20  uniformed status, that what we are really talking

         21  about is the ability of City workers within Mayoral

         22  agencies. We are not no longer talking about HHC. We

         23  are not talking about the Taxi and Limousine

         24  Commission. We are not talking about the Board of

         25  Education. We are now talking about Mayoral
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          2  agencies. And under our Charter this Council has

          3  direct oversight, and by the way, HHC we have

          4  oversight, simply because we do give them money, you

          5  know. When you can contract out a $107 million

          6  contract for health prison services, once you took

          7  that money, you may not be a Mayoral agency, but it

          8  is tax levy money and that is how I have the power

          9  within the Health Committee to oversee HHC.

         10                 But the point I am trying to make is

         11  very clear, is this issue is not about uniformed.

         12  This issue is about giving you the ability to go to

         13  the table to discuss terms and conditions. So far so

         14  good?

         15                 MR. ROTHSCHILD: Absolutely, sir.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And if I keep

         17  this up, I may become a lawyer.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Gentlemen and

         20  ladies, I want to thank you.

         21                 We will be deliberating on this. If I

         22  can encourage you to submit those reports ASAP, like

         23  within the next day or two?

         24                 MR. BAHNKEN: You will have them, sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: One more, we are

          6  not finished yet. Mr. McAllan.

          7                 Mr. McAllan, I am going to ask you

          8  to, only because we are being dispossessed from this

          9  room, I am going to ask you to be brief and

         10  summarize your testimony.

         11                 MR. McALLAN: By all means, sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: You may begin.

         13                 MR. McALLAN: I will spare you the

         14  dinosaur joke, but I will point out to you that I am

         15  a graduate of the first New York City EMS paramedic

         16  class held at Jacobi Hospital in 1974. At the same

         17  time HHC was trying to upgrade the ambulances by

         18  creating the ambulance corpsman title and

         19  cross-training what the time were motor vehicle

         20  operators and pretty much First Aid ambulance

         21  technicians.

         22                 The important point to all of this is

         23  within two months of us graduating the City plunged

         24  into a terrible fiscal crisis, as you know, and

         25  within another few months they were laying off cops

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            172

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  and firefighters and the like.

          3                 Our salary was set at that time just

          4  a few hundred dollars above the motor vehicle

          5  operators' salary, and the City of New York,

          6  District Council 37, told us well this will be taken

          7  care of at collective bargaining, that, you know, of

          8  course there will be a regular negotiation, there

          9  will be a regular collective bargaining negotiation

         10  in which the true value of the paramedic title, the

         11  Ambulance Corpsman title, the Lieutenant/Captain

         12  title will be set by the collective bargaining

         13  process.

         14                 The important point of this testimony

         15  is that that never happened. Within a few months

         16  there was the Financial Control Board, the salaries

         17  were locked in. The result has been that EMS has

         18  very low base salaries and has never once in this

         19  City bargained freely for salaries versus the City

         20  of New York. It has all been pattern bargaining,

         21  coalition bargaining, fixed raises, et cetera.

         22                 I point out in my testimony there has

         23  only been ten years ago there was an equity panel,

         24  EMS employees were given a raise at that time, but

         25  it has been ten years. So, now you have the Giuliani
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          2  Administration coming in and saying here, well, we

          3  are not short licensed teachers -- what are they

          4  crazy? And why? Well, because the salaries have not

          5  kept pace with the other jurisdictions.

          6                 It is quite the same with EMS.

          7  Obviously it is the same in the Police Department.

          8  This City can't attract good workers. They need to

          9  replace the EMS workers in the future, and in my

         10  opinion this Giuliani Administration has done

         11  significant damage, done generation's worth of

         12  damage to the civil service in this City by allowing

         13  these salaries to be so low, by passing down

         14  notorious double zero contracts and so on, and I

         15  think the Council should look to the future, because

         16  by passing this bill, you would allow the in-coming

         17  Mayor, whoever that may be, to creatively negotiate

         18  with EMS employees, perhaps the Fire Alarm

         19  Dispatchers as well, to address our particular

         20  issues.

         21                 You wouldn't have the Fire Department

         22  telling the workers in this room, well, we don't

         23  care if your kid is getting off the school bus. We

         24  are mandating you to do overtime, and we don't care

         25  if she is willing to volunteer for that slot. And
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          2  that is what they do today. Or we don't care that

          3  that gentleman over there is going to paramedic

          4  school at night and needs to take an exam, we will

          5  bring you up on charges because we told you, you

          6  have to do it. Well, that's the Fire Department

          7  attitude. And I must say to you I was personally

          8  offended here today when the Fire Department didn't

          9  have a clue about the suicide rate in EMS, and I

         10  should say the Fire Administration, let me correct

         11  that. The Fire Administration didn't have a clue.

         12  And I wish to thank every member of the City

         13  Council, because as you will recall, in the early

         14  nineties, New York City EMS had a suicide rate, when

         15  you consider the size of the two agencies, that was

         16  similar to the New York City Police Department. And

         17  it is the New York City Council that funded the peer

         18  support programs, and reduced that suicide rate.

         19                 So, as the other speakers have said

         20  in this room, it is an issue of respect, and it is

         21  an issue of allowing EMS workers to creatively

         22  address the big problems they have, scheduling

         23  coverage and injury rates. I elaborated in my

         24  testimony about injury rates, and maybe we can come

         25  to a better system of dealing with the injury rates,
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          2  getting people treatment and the like.

          3                 So, of course, I speak in favor of

          4  Intro. 641, and, again, I wish to thank the Council

          5  for their efforts on our behalf and on behalf of all

          6  the EMS workers, and I urge you to pass this Intro.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: Thank you very

          8  much, Mr. McAllan. We will enter the full written

          9  testimony into the record.

         10                 MR. McALLAN: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WARDEN: And I want to

         12  thank you for coming.

         13                 Are there any other business before

         14  this Committee? If not, thank you for coming. It is

         15  hereby adjourned.

         16                 (The following testimony was read

         17  into the record.)

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  Richard J. McAllan

         21

         22                 I am pleased to appear before the New

         23  York City Council Committee on Fire and Criminal

         24  Justice Services to speak in support of the

         25  inclusion of NYC Emergency Medical Services
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          2  employees in the fire services bargaining unit for

          3  collective bargaining purposes.

          4                 The inclusion of New York City EMS

          5  employees in the Fire Services Bargaining Unit is

          6  often referred to as designating the New York City

          7  EMS employees of the New York City Fire Department

          8  as an uniformed or emergency service.

          9                 While there are many aspects to such

         10  a designation, this is a crucial step in recognizing

         11  the all important contribution the New York City EMS

         12  professionals make to pre-hospital emergency medical

         13  safety of all New Yorkers.

         14                 By sponsoring Intro. 641, Councilman

         15  McCaffrey has correctly recognized the fact that the

         16  New York City EMS employees and their EMS

         17  supervisors have a parallel emergency service career

         18  that is very similar to Fire and Police employment

         19  in the City.

         20                 As such, the grueling

         21  around-the-clock job of the New York City EMS often

         22  have little in common with regular civilian City

         23  employment when it comes to conventional terms and

         24  conditions of employment. Allowing the New York City

         25  EMS employees to address these issues in collective
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          2  bargaining with the City of New York would be a

          3  great step forward to tailoring terms and conditions

          4  of employment that would be more suitable to the

          5  Fire Department and the New York City EMS workers'

          6  needs.

          7                 Creation of the New York City EMS

          8  employee title series: I graduated from the first

          9  New York City EMS Paramedics Class in July of 1974.

         10  There were approximately 20 paramedics graduated in

         11  this first class which allowed for the addition to

         12  New York City EMS Paramedic Units operating out of

         13  Jacobi Hospital in the Bronx.

         14                 The New York City Health and

         15  Hospitals Corporation was planning to train more

         16  classes of paramedics, to expand the paramedics

         17  pre-hospital provision of advanced life support,

         18  ALS, throughout New York City.

         19                 EMS/HHC trained their paramedics to

         20  the United States Department of Transportation Level

         21  IV requirement, which is the highest level of

         22  paramedic training recognized in the United States.

         23                 All New York City EMS paramedics are

         24  still trained to that high level and are mandated to

         25  operate in pairs on all the emergency ambulances
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          2  operating in the City of New York. Voluntary

          3  hospital ambulance paramedics operating in the New

          4  York City 911 system are also trained to that DOT 4

          5  level and are also required to operate in two-person

          6  paramedic crews by the New York City Regional

          7  Medical Advisory Committee.

          8                 At the same time that HHC was taking

          9  its first steps to bring paramedics to the New York

         10  City 911 system, EMS paramedics were in training.

         11  EMS HHC was also implementing the Ambulance Corpsman

         12  Program in which the ambulance motor vehicle

         13  operators and ambulance technicians cross-trained to

         14  become emergency medical technicians at the DOT 1

         15  level. This added greater flexibility to the New

         16  York City EMS system because now both EMS Ambulance

         17  Corpsman and Paramedic crews could provide patient

         18  care at the scene of an emergency.

         19                 Today the New York City EMS Ambulance

         20  Corpsman, now known as Emergency Medical

         21  Specialists, EMTs, and are also trained in the use

         22  of automatic defibrillators in the pre-hospital

         23  setting.

         24                 EMS HHC also created the supervising

         25  ambulance corpsman title group in the 1970s as well.
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          2  This supervisors' title group contained EMS

          3  lieutenant and captains. Both ambulance corpsman and

          4  paramedics could promote into these EMS supervisory

          5  titles to compete for appointment to the title of

          6  EMS Lieutenant through civil service examinations.

          7                 Today these New York City EMS

          8  supervisory positions still contain both EMT

          9  Paramedic certified officers.

         10                 In addition to their EMT training,

         11  paramedics are trained to the advance life support

         12  level and can intubate patients, as well as

         13  administer a number of IV or other medications under

         14  New York City Regional Protocols or by permission of

         15  the on-line EMS Telemetry Physician. They are

         16  trained in a number of specialized cardiac

         17  management techniques, such as emergency

         18  cardioversion if that becomes necessary in the

         19  field.

         20                 EMTs are trained in emergency

         21  management of patients that includes emergency

         22  airway management, CPR, emergency extrication and/or

         23  fracture management techniques, and so forth. All

         24  New York City EMS BLS ambulance crews now carry the

         25  inhalable asthma medication Proventil for
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          2  pre-hospital treatment of asthma patients. All New

          3  York City EMS BLS crews also carry emergency

          4  semi-automatic Defibrillators for use in cardiac

          5  arrest situations. The New York City EMS EMT crews

          6  are now designated as EMT-Ds.

          7                 Bargaining History of New York City

          8  EMS Employees:

          9                 Unfortunately, these plans for a

         10  major upgrade of New York City EMS services soon got

         11  caught up in the horrible New York City fiscal

         12  crisis of the 1970s. Shortly after we graduated as

         13  paramedics, New York City plunged into the depth of

         14  the worst municipal fiscal crisis since the Great

         15  Depression. In short order, the City was laying off

         16  thousands of police, firefighters and other City

         17  workers.

         18                 An across the board rigid job freeze

         19  was put into place for New York City EMS and HHC.

         20  For EMS this resulted in significantly fewer

         21  ambulances on the streets because the City could not

         22  pay overtime to cover these significant EMS

         23  vacancies. This fiscal crisis caused a three-year

         24  delay in the training of additional New York City

         25  EMS Paramedics in the 1970s as well.
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          2                 Under these draconian cutbacks, the

          3  New York City EMS response time shot up to where it

          4  was uncommon for EMS calls to be placed on hold for

          5  an hour or more. Years ago, your writer testified

          6  before this Council about a patient who had died

          7  waiting for my paramedic ambulance to arrive while

          8  New York City EMS was in a severe emergency call

          9  backlog.

         10                 In the late 1980s and early 1990s,

         11  the City finally responded to this criticism, and

         12  dramatically increased the number of New York City

         13  EMS ambulances in the field and steadily reduced the

         14  New York City EMS response time.

         15                 When the first Jacobi Paramedic class

         16  graduated in 1974, EMS/HHC set the paramedic salary

         17  at just a few hundred dollars above the highest paid

         18  motor vehicle operator's salary. Don't worry, EMS

         19  said, the true value of your new job title will be

         20  decided at the collective bargaining table. Similar

         21  representations were made to the ambulance corpsman

         22  as well.

         23                 Of course, New York City EMS

         24  employees never got to the bargaining table to

         25  individually negotiate the true value of these job
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          2  titles. Before long the City had a Financial Control

          3  Board to closely monitor the City's finances.

          4                 Individual bargaining was replaced

          5  with two coalition bargaining groups, one that

          6  negotiated for all the uniformed services, and

          7  another that negotiated for all the civilians

          8  employees of the City.

          9                 What pay raises we received were

         10  negotiated on an across-the-board basis for these

         11  two major groups. Our original paramedic and

         12  corpsman-based salaries were "locked in" by the new

         13  collective bargaining procedures. Even today, with

         14  pattern bargaining still in place in New York City,

         15  these low original based salaries continue to haunt

         16  New York City EMS employees.

         17                 In other words, the employees of New

         18  York City EMS never once had the opportunity to have

         19  a normal collective bargaining process with the City

         20  of New York. Rather, the City's budget crisis has

         21  continued to haunt the employees of New York City

         22  EMS when it comes to collective bargaining issues.

         23                 These low New York City based

         24  salaries have certainly contributed to the chronic

         25  retention problems that New York City EMS continues
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          2  to face. It has been over ten years since the City

          3  of New York has tried to address retention problems

          4  in its EMS titles. In the late 1980s the City and

          5  District Council 37 did agree to an equity fund that

          6  would raise the salaries of employees in those

          7  titles that had high attrition rates.

          8                 The New York City EMS employees did

          9  have their salaries raised at that time based on the

         10  high New York City EMS attrition rates.

         11                 However, even the New York City

         12  Office of Collective Bargaining Mediator who

         13  assisted in negotiating those equity fund-raisers

         14  commented at the time that the base salaries in EMS

         15  were so low that the available equity panel money

         16  could not fully address the true salary issues in

         17  New York City EMS.

         18                 Current bargaining situation in

         19  EMS/FDNY:

         20                 The current bargaining situation in

         21  the New York City EMS is worst than what is found in

         22  most collective bargaining in New York City.

         23                 For example, the current New York

         24  City Fire Department Administration is a

         25  particularly destructive management when it comes to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            184

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  dealing with New York City EMS employees.

          3                 For example, the NYFD deliberately

          4  disregarded the volunteers first EMS/HHC Overtime

          5  Policies that NYFD had promised to honor in this

          6  ill-fated merger.

          7                 Instead, the NYFD has been

          8  aggressively enforcing their own draconian mandatory

          9  overtime policies that have caused widespread job

         10  difficulties for the New York City EMS workers.

         11                 This NYFD Administration will tell

         12  single parents that they have to stay for overtime

         13  when they have no child care available that day.

         14                 EMS/HHC would have accepted a

         15  volunteer to work in the parent's place under a

         16  grievance that your writer negotiated with EMS/HHC

         17  when I served as President of the EMS Local 2507 in

         18  the late 1980s.

         19                 Recently I represented a New York

         20  City EMS EMT who received charges from FDNY for his

         21  declining a tour of EMS mandatory overtime to take

         22  an important paramedic examination at his outside

         23  paramedic school. Remember that FDNY has

         24  deliberately created a shortage of New York City EMS

         25  Paramedics by refusing to train Paramedic students
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          2  on release time at the NYC EMS Academy as is

          3  provided in the current Hospital Technicians

          4  Contact. Then FDNY charges these New York City EMS

          5  EMTs who are trying to better themselves on the

          6  outside with refusal to do mandatory overtime when

          7  there are volunteers available to take the shift.

          8                 If FDNY wished to destabilize the New

          9  York City EMS workforce, they couldn't have done a

         10  better job of it with these deliberately created

         11  negative employment conditions. FDNY's refusal to

         12  recognize the fact that our New York EMS employees

         13  have outside lives and have created an especially

         14  severe shortage of New York City Paramedics. FDNY

         15  has also created a large turnover of New York City

         16  EMS EMTs by their repressive policies as well.

         17                 It is working conditions issued such

         18  as these that could be more effectively addressed

         19  under the uniformed services bargaining unit. I note

         20  that FDNY was just found to be in violation of the

         21  Collective Bargaining Laws by the New York City

         22  Office of Collective Bargaining for making

         23  unilateral changes in the EMS FDNY overtime

         24  distribution policies.

         25                 Of course, labor management
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          2  cooperation in this area of EMS work charts and

          3  coverage for vacancies would make all the difference

          4  in the world for job retention in New York City EMS.

          5  Unfortunately, under the current City

          6  Administration, respecting the needs of the New York

          7  City EMS workers is not likely to happen. As a

          8  result, New York City EMS continues to lose talent

          9  under FDNY's repressive administration.

         10                 The same is also true for how EMS

         11  FDNY deals with the high New York City EMS worker

         12  injury rates. As I have previously testified before

         13  this Council, the New York City EMS ambulances have

         14  a high ambulance unit utilization rate as these New

         15  York City EMS ambulance crews struggle to keep up

         16  with the million plus New York City EMS 911 calls

         17  received in the City each year.

         18                 New York City EMS employees currently

         19  have a line of duty injury agreement with New York

         20  City that provides a supplement to pay injured New

         21  York City EMS workers full salary for up to 18

         22  months. Unfortunately, New York City EMS employees

         23  must still utilize the New York State workers

         24  compensation board for approvals of medical tests

         25  and surgical interventions, workers compensation
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          2  benefits and so forth.

          3                 Also, there are needless delays in

          4  obtaining diagnostic test approval, physical

          5  therapy, approvals for restorative surgeries for our

          6  New York City EMS workers.

          7                 In the meantime, New York City

          8  taxpayers' money is being needlessly wasted while

          9  our EMS workers and their doctors struggle to get

         10  the necessary approvals for treatment of these

         11  injured EMS workers from the New York City Law

         12  Department.

         13                 Approving this intro would allow the

         14  Union and the City to negotiate changes in how they

         15  handle the high injury rate of New York City EMS. Of

         16  course, the first step would hopefully be the

         17  prevention of such injuries, but it would benefit

         18  both the New York City EMS employees and the New

         19  York City taxpayers if a more timely and effective

         20  method of treating injured New York City EMS workers

         21  were negotiated under the uniformed services

         22  bargaining procedures.

         23                 While I don't believe that anything

         24  constructive will come out of the labor negotiations

         25  with the outgoing Giuliani Administration, the EMS
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          2  bargaining unit change will make it possible to

          3  creatively address these other issues when a new

          4  Mayoral administration takes over.

          5                 The New York City Council Should

          6  Approve Intro. 641:

          7                 In my opinion, the Giuliani

          8  Administration has done a generation's worth of

          9  damage to the New York City Civil Service System in

         10  just his eight years in office.

         11                 The Administration's needless attacks

         12  on labor unions of all types needs not be repeated

         13  here. Worse, the illegal passage of the notorious

         14  "double zero" contract by the former DC 37

         15  Administration has now placed the salaries of many

         16  city workers way behind the salaries of their

         17  counterparts in other nearby jurisdictions.

         18                 This has only compounded the

         19  retention problems in New York City EMS because New

         20  York City EMS salaries often lag far behind the

         21  salaries of the New York City voluntary hospital

         22  ambulance employees operating in the New York City

         23  EMS 911 system, as well as the salaries of the EMTs

         24  and Paramedics working in other jurisdictions.

         25                 Of course, the Giuliani
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          2  Administration will no doubt oppose this proposal

          3  before the New York City Council. But this is the

          4  same Administration that denies that the licensed

          5  teacher shortage flows from the fact that the New

          6  York City teachers' salaries and benefits are no

          7  longer competitive with other nearby school

          8  districts.

          9                 Having worked through the 1970s

         10  budget crisis, your writer certainly understands

         11  that the City must live within its budgetary means.

         12  But with that said, the City still needs to be able

         13  to attract the best Police Officers, the best

         14  Teachers and the best EMS professionals if the City

         15  is going to be able to deliver quality municipal

         16  services in the future.

         17                 It is here where the current members

         18  of the New York City Council should make a

         19  difference. The passage of intro. 641 would set the

         20  stage for a new Mayoral Administration to be able to

         21  effectively address New York City EMS service

         22  delivery issues by finding creative ways to improve

         23  EMS working conditions while helping to reduce the

         24  high attrition rates in the New York City EMS

         25  workforce.
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          2                 Our New York City EMS workers are all

          3  too often voting with their feet in the face of this

          4  openly labor hostile Administration, just as many

          5  other City workers are leaving their City jobs under

          6  this Administration.

          7                 Hopefully the new Mayoral

          8  Administration will be able to stem this loss of New

          9  York City EMS talent to other jurisdictions and/or

         10  other careers.

         11                 I respectfully urge this Council to

         12  pass this Intro. to make it possible for a new Mayor

         13  to reinvest both in the future of New York City and

         14  the New York City EMS professionals that serve the

         15  citizens of this great City.

         16                 Respectfully Submitted, Richard J.

         17  McAllan, Senior New York City EMS Paramedic.

         18

         19

         20  Written Testimony Of:

         21  Mothers Against Drunk Driving

         22

         23                 Memorandum in Support.

         24                 The New York Chapter of Mothers

         25  Against Drunk Driving is part of a national

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            191

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  organization that represents over three million

          3  Americans and whose mission is to stop drunk

          4  driving, support the victims of this violent crime

          5  and prevent underage drinking.

          6                 MADD supports the legislative

          7  initiative put forth by the New York City Mayor's

          8  Office of the Criminal Justice Coordinator, entitled

          9  "Victims of Violent Crime Protection Act," that

         10  would create a local civil cause of action for

         11  certain victims of violent crimes.

         12                 The definition of "crime of violence"

         13  outlined in this proposal would mean an act that

         14  would constitute a misdemeanor or felony against the

         15  person, which includes driving while intoxicated as

         16  defined in Article 31 of the State's Vehicle and

         17  Traffic Law.

         18                 The bill would provide the plaintiff

         19  with the following relief: Compensatory and punitive

         20  damages, injunctive and declaratory relief,

         21  attorney's fees and costs, and such other relief

         22  deemed appropriate. There would be a six-year

         23  statute of limitations for such an action, and a

         24  conviction for a "crime of violence" would be

         25  considered conclusive proof of the underlying facts
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          2  of the crime in the newly created civil cause of

          3  action.

          4                 One component of MADD's mission is to

          5  stop drunk driving. While criminal consequences may

          6  be more of a deterrent to some persons, civil

          7  consequences may be an effective deterrent for other

          8  persons. Therefore, MADD supports this measure,

          9  which would create another forum in which victims

         10  can seek redress from persons who are convicted of

         11  our State's drinking and driving laws.

         12                 Respectfully submitted, Maureen

         13  Fisher Riccardella, State Chair.

         14

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Gordon J. Campbell

         18  Chief Executive Officer

         19  Safe Horizon

         20

         21                 My name is Gordon Campbell. I am the

         22  Chief Executive Officer of Safe Horizon (formerly

         23  Victim Services), the nation's leading non-profit

         24  victim assistance and prevention organization.

         25                 The mission of Safe Horizon is to
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          2  provide support, prevent violence, and promote

          3  justice for victims of crime and abuse, their

          4  families and communities.

          5                 The organization helps more than

          6  200,000 New Yorkers each year, including 75,000

          7  domestic violence victims, through programs in

          8  emergency and transitional shelters, community

          9  offices, courts, police precincts, schools and

         10  medical centers throughout New York City.

         11                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         12  address this hearing on Intro. 853, the "Victims of

         13  Violent Crime Protection Act". We are hopeful that

         14  this legislation will provide an important tool in

         15  ensuring accountability for perpetrators and justice

         16  for victims. Because too many victims suffer

         17  consequences that cannot be addressed by the

         18  criminal justice system alone, civil remedies may be

         19  necessary for adequate compensation for the

         20  long-term results of violent crime, including lost

         21  pay and emotional damage.

         22                 Although we strongly support the idea

         23  of this initiative, we are gravely concerned that

         24  the proposed language will have too many deserving

         25  victims behind. We know from our experience in
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          2  working with over 200,000 victims of crime and abuse

          3  each year that the majority of domestic violence

          4  perpetrators who are convicted in New York City

          5  plead guilty to harassment in the second degree.

          6  This charge is a violation of the penal code

          7  (section 340.26); Intro. 853, in its current form,

          8  is applicable only to crimes of violence that

          9  constitute a misdemeanor or a felony.

         10                 Similarly, many Family Court Judges

         11  make findings on harassment rather than requiring

         12  testimony on misdemeanor assault allegations.

         13                 Therefore, the majority of victims of

         14  domestic violence in New York City would not be

         15  eligible for relief as proposed by Intro. 853.

         16                 Despite the classification of the

         17  offense committed against them, these domestic

         18  violence victims are unarguably "victims of violent

         19  crime" and should not be excluded from the

         20  protections of this bill.

         21                 Harassment in the second degree under

         22  Penal Law 240.26 can include acts of violence such

         23  as punching, slapping, pulling hair out, headlocks,

         24  neck-grabbing and/or kicking. There should be no

         25  confusion about their status under this bill. These
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          2  victims must be able to seek compensatory damages

          3  for the harm done to them and to their children.

          4                 Therefore we support Intro. 853 with

          5  language added as follows:

          6                 "Section 10-402 Definition: For

          7  purposes of this chapter:

          8                 A."Crime of violence means an act or

          9  series of acts that would constitute a misdemeanor

         10  or felony in state or federal law or a violation of

         11  the penal code section 240.26 or that would

         12  constitute a misdemeanor or felony against property

         13  as defined in state or federal law if the conduct

         14  presents a serious risk to injury to another,

         15  whether or not those acts have actually resulted in

         16  criminal charges, prosecution of conviction."

         17  (underlined portion added).

         18                 The simple addition of this language

         19  will ensure that this bill truly serves all victims

         20  of violent crime.

         21                 Thank you very much for your time and

         22  attention in this matter.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 4:35 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 20th day of February 2001.
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         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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